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THE_BCN

The BCN began in 1767 when a group of Biumingham
industrialists, alammed that thein competitons
elsewherne might gain an advantage §rom reduced
thanspont costs on several proposed new waterways,
asked James Brindley {o swwey a route for a canak,
This nan grom Biumingham to the Stagfordshine and
Woncestershine Canal at Aldersfey nearn Worlverhampton,
with a branch to the Wednesbury collieries. The
branch was opened in 1769 and the main Line was
completed in 1772, From this initial 26 miles on s0
the BCN developed by the construction of new canals
and amafgamations with neighbouning companies fo a
total of 159 miles. This has been neduced by closwres
to just oven 100 miles, of which about 90, the
Bouingham and BRack Country netwonk, are descrnibed
An this gudde.

Thanks to the eggonts oy canal societies, Local
couneils and BWB the canals of the BCN are in belier
condition than many mone popular wateways. There 44
ample depth of watern and sunprisingly Little nubbish.
As severnal accunate maps are now avaifable and mosit
04 the gactony basins, into which one could
wnadvertently cunise, have been §4€fed in, navigation
opy the netwonk is very much easien than in the past.
The towpaths are, in general, excellent and the whole
04 the BCN, excepit forn two small Loops, can be walked.
The sunioundings nange grom completely runal, nich in
wild Life, Lo heavily indusinial, where many of the
buildings are highly negarded by Local histornians.

The story of the BCN has been colounful, even bizanre:
at one time the company was excommunicated fon failure
Lo pay chunch nates. 12 s sLlL full of interesi today.
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USING THE GUIDE AND ROUTE PLANNING

Since 1969 three gudides to the BCN have been
published and, as a direct nesult, there has been a
considerable increase in the number of visitons to
the system. However many boaters and walkers, thein
interest 4n the BCN awakened, have nequested a much
mone detailed guide, When asked exactly what detail
was requined thein neplies included Lnformation
about the histony, wild Life, geology and industrial
archaeology of the canal, the Location of services
such as public houses, fish and chip shops, telephones
and bus noutes, and whether there was access to .the
towpath grom nearby noads. This guide &8 an attempt
Lo meet thein nequinements.

Much of the ingonmation has been shown on the
maps, although this could only be done successfully
by nepresenting the canal as a straight Line. This is
easy {o gollow but inevitably Leads to some distorntion
0g othern geatures such as roads and railways. Bends in
the canal are mentioned in the fext when noteworthy,
and the general dirnection of each waterway 48 indicated
on the nroute planning map (page <v). 1§ a more
conventional nepresentation s required the guide can
be nead in conjunction with Oxrdnance Survey Sheet 139
(1:50000 Finst Series) on the Geographerns' A-1 Sitneet
Atlas. The maps <n the guide are not to scale but each
page covers approximately one mile of canal (sometimes
Less Lf there are a number of Locks)

The main features of each canal and its swuwundings
arne described 4in the text, and examples chosen o
Llustnate how Lt 46 often possible forn the travellen
to neconmstruct a small piece of canal histony grom the
evidence along the way. Useful clues are somelimes
provided by the industnies that developed nean the
canals and these are included on the maps. Further
ingomation can be obtained grom the excellent nefgerence
Librarnies 4in the negdon.
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The guide 48 divided into sections, each
cornesponding to one of the BCN canals. Within each
section all pages beanr the initials of the canal
they negen fo (eg: Dudley Canal: D, Rushall Canal:
RU). The initials gon each canal are shown on the
noute planning map opposite. The pages are also
numbenred in sequence from one end ¢f the canal to
the other, with maps on Llustrations on the Left-
hand page, text on the night. Each text page bears
the same number as the map (€ {4 oppesite. Some
sections have an extra (LLlustration numbered as page
0 but the ginst map 48 always page T. The maps and
text desenibing shont branches are inserted at the
appropriate place within each section. The ning
binding can be removed (wse a sPip of card o
suppont the plastic clips as they are Lifjted) and
the pages rearnranged to swit the wsen, 1§ desinred
they can be kept as Loose Leaves in a plastic wallet.

The numbers at junctions on the noute planning
map {ndicate which pages are needed for a particular
fourney. Fon example, to thavel from the Worcesten
and Biwmingham Canal to Chasewater via the Biumingham
and Fazeley Canal will requine maps ML1, BF1-6,
TVI-5, RUT-3, DEI-5 and WE13-14. A nough estimate of
mileage (Ltake one map = 1 mile) (4 22 and the nwnben
0§ Locks ( each < on the map approximates to 3 Locks)
appears Lo be 45, Accurate figurnes obtained from the
table of distances and ghom checking the nuwnber ¢f
Locks on the Lange scale maps are 19 and 46. Asswning
a boat thavels four miles on passes 4 Locks per houwt
the difgerence between the two setls of figuwres (n
estimated jowrney time L85 } hour. Thus the rowte
planning map gives an indication of the time needed
gon a panticwlan jowney and alternative hroutes can
be rapidly compared. 1§ travelling along a canal in
the opposite dirnection to the sequence followed in
the guide nreverse all directions geven i the text
and nead the maps grom the bottom to the top.



SYMBOLS ANV ABBREVIATTONS

W
.
P
C
v ("}
L) X Ll
— i
Fds 4
*BP

(TH)

U4

[}

Canal and Towpath

Lock: single top gate, mitred
bottom gates, Overflow wein
and Bollards (on posts)

Pipe (PP = Pipes), Cable and
Powen trnansmission £ine

Road bridge, with narrows,
Fire Doons and official
access to canal

Railway bridge and Boundary
Post

Basin with Boatyard

Building oy interest with
Number plate (on nameplate)

Footbridge and Footpath,
gormenly Railway on Trhamway,
unof ficial access Lo canal
Moorings and Stop plank nrack
Site of basin and Sluice

Sanitany station :
toilet disposal,

chemical

Watern point and site of Toll
House

0nly shops Likely Zo be of use Lo

canal thavellens ore shown on the maps



CH  Chinese nesiauwrant
CP  Playground

v Diesel Fuel

FC  Fsh and Chdps

G Garage

GP  Ganrage + petrel

GPV  Garnage + petrwol + D
H Hotel
1 Indian nestawriant

L Letten box

LB Litten ban

LC  Level chrossing
LIB Librany

NT  Newsagent

0L 05y Licence

126
522

Bus routes

PC
PH
PO
PS

SB
SP
SURG
TA
B

m

Public convendence
Public house

Post ofpice
Police station
Restawrant

-Signak box

Sign post
Surgery
Telephone
Take-away
Wine ban
Feet
Yards
MiLes

{ndicates a name, number or date on a

buclding, Lock gate, brickwonk efe.
(but not a plate)

on a noad at edge of map {ndicates

| direction of services; 4n this eg:
straight ahead, Znd twwn on night

£ nound a works on mine {ndicates

has three distinet meanings:-

Livia

48 now closed on demolished, eg:
(Wallows Collieny)

L round the destination given for a
nadlway Line Lndicates no negular
passengen service

nowmal wsage, eg: Biumdingham (Snow

HiLL), Market (Tues).

Public houses named on the maps have been recommended

by previous visditons.
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TABLE OF DISTANCES

Canal Distance

(+ branches) m

NEW MAIN LINE

Woncester Ban Zo:
0Ld Turn

Ladywood J

Sandy Turn

Soho Loop E. End
Winson Green J
Smethwick J
Bromgond J
Pudding Green J
Albion J

Vudley Pont J
Factony J
Deepgields J 10
Honseley Fields J 13
Alderstley J 15

CoNSG LU —w-—~OCOo

Gowen Branch 0
Netnerton Tunnel 2
Wednesbury 0ak ]

WEDNESBURY 0LD
CANAL

Pudding Green J Zo:
Rydens Gnreen J 0
Ridgacne Branch I

Ridgacne Branch 0

§

T~mm oMM OO TNNEN

~

5
2

5

Canal Distance
(+ branches) m o4
0LD MAIN LINE
Smethwick J to:
Engine Branch 0 4
Spon Lane J 2 0
0Ldbury Locks J 2 5
Brades Hall J 3 9
Tipton J 6 0
Factony J 6 4
Newhatl Branch 0 1
Oozells St. Loop 0 3
Icknield Pont Loop 0 6
Soho Loop 1 2
Engine Branch 0 5
Spon Lane Locks 0 3
Titgond Canal I 3
WYRLEY AND
ESSTAGTON CANAL
Honseley Fields J to:
Binehills J 5 0
Pelsall J 12 7
Catshill J 15 .3
Ogley J 16 3
Cannock Extension 1 4
Anglesley Branch 1 4
Daw End Branch § &

me=miles, §= purlongs, J = Junction

wiid



Canal Vistance Canatl Distance

(+ branches) m 4 (+ branches) mo4
WALSALL CANAL RUSHALL CANAL 2 6
Rydens Green J to:
Doe Bank J ] 3 TAME VALLEY CANAL
Anson Branch 5 Salgornd T o:
Walsall J 6 7 Rushatl J 5 0
Walsall Wharg 7 0 Doe Bank J § 4
Anson Branch 0 4 VUDLEY CANAL
Walsall Branch 0 7 No. T
Btack Delph J to:
BIRMINGHAM AND Blowens Green J 2 1
FAZELEY CANAL Tipton J 4 4
Farunerns Bridge J Zo:
Aston J I 4 No.2
Salgond J 3 2 Blowenrs Green J to:
Bunblehole Amn 2 3
Digbeth Branch 0 6 Windmill End J Z 5
Hawne Basin 5 5

Books on the BCN

The Canals of the West Midlands. Charles Hadgield
1966 Published by David and Charles.

The Biouninghan Canal Navigations. Volume 1
(1765-1846) S.R.Broadbredge 1974,
Published by David and Charles.

The 0then Sixty Miles (abandoned canats)
Rechand Chesten-Browne, 1951
Published by BCNS

£LX



FACILITIES FOR BOATS

Sanctany Stations:

Gas Sitneet Basin (map MLT)
Faunens Bridge (BFT)
Tividale (MLTT)

Sneyd (WE7)

Coombeswood (D11)

Cannock Extension (CET)

Punp-0ut Stations:
Oozells Sineet Loop (MLT)

Diesed Fuel:

0ozells Strneet Loop (ML1)
Minerva Wharg (ML17)
Cannock Extension (CET)

Refuse Disposal:

Lock 7 Farmerns Bridge (BF2)
Lock 10 Wolverhampton (ML19,

Watern Points:

Gas Strneet Basin (MLT)
Farmens Bridge (BFT)
Tividale (ML1T)

Sneyd (WE7)

Coombeswood (DI1)
Bumblehole (D§)

Oozells Sineet Loop (ML1)
Lock 15 Wolverhampton (ML20)
Rushalf (RUT)

Pery Barnn (TV4)

Cannock Extension (CET)

USEFUL PHONE NUMBERS

Canalphone (Nonth)
Canalphone (Souwth)
BWB Area 0fgice

Dudley Canal Thusit

) f\J '-\_1.1N

o R et S

' _W\“;fmm\mm

01-723-8486
01-723-8487
021-454-7091
021-520-5321



The production of this guide would have been
Ampossible without the asstance of a consdderable
nwiber of people. These are far too nunerows 1o
mention individually but include the stafg of several
Local Librarnies, a number of canal historians and
authons, memberns of the Biuningham Branch of the TWA,
and many BWB employees. We would Like Lo record our
thanks gon thein help.
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In a publication of this natwre errons and
omissions ane always possible, parnticularly as changes
veewr very napddly in this area. Every canal and road
Shown on the maps has been visited at Least once, and
every cane taken to enswre that the ingowmation in the
guide 45 accuwnate, However no responsibility can be
accepded forn any ernons on omissdans on the consequences
thereof., The publishers would be grateful to necedve
suggestions fon changes and improvements Lo the gudide
gon gutune editions,
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THE BCN MAIN LINE

(inctuding the Titford Canal,
the Wednesbury 0£d Canal and Ridgacre Branch,
and the Wednesbuwry Oak Loop)

The Main Line of the BCN from Biumingham to
Wolverhampton was completed in 1772, There were two
teminal branches at the Biumingham end, one past
Cambrian Whang to Newhall (see BFI1), the other to Gas
Street Basin., Boith branches have been truncated and
the canal at Gas Stneet fonmenly extended to 04d Whanrg,
where the oniginal BCN offices gronted onto Sugfoll
Stneet.They were demolished £n the 19205 after the
Company had moved to Daimler House nearby.

The gt pant of the Worcesten and Biumingham
Canal was opened 4n 1795 but to sageguard their water
the BCN nefused to allow a connection with the new
canal, and a 7 goot wide stnip of Land - Woncester
Bar - was Left between them, Inteninable delays and
grus tation must have been caused by this Bar as
everything passing grom one canal to the other had to
be transhipped across it, The stop Lock through the Bar
was not built until 1815 when the Wonrcester and Bimmingham
was completed to the Severn and desperately needed waten,
This the BCN agreed fo supply, at a price, via the Lock.

There 48 always a §ine display of naviow boats
mooned along the Bar, although there have hecently
been attempts to move them elsewhere and thus desinoy
much of the remaining atmosphere of the Basin. In the
19605 and eanly 705 this was a Mecca fon Local waterways
enthusiasts. The Basin was almost completely enclosed
by buildings and to walk through the passage grom Gas
Street was to step into a difgerent world, The
demolition in 1975 of the warehouses on the south side
Lueparably changed the characten of the Basin and
demons thated an amazing Lack of sensitivity by BWB gfor
the canal environment., Before Leaving the Basin note

MLO
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Lhe two BCN boundary posts on the towpath bridge on

the nonti side and the nwiber plates on the canalside
buildings. These plates were introduced by the Company
around 1900 and the numbering runs sequentially along
each canal of the BCN, although thene are some anomalies,
particularly on the Main Line, and gaps <in the serdies
whene buildings have been demolished.

Broad Street Tunnel 48 4n gact a bridge that has
been extended four times. When the BCN was a gLowrnishing
commereiad wateway the tunnel was somewhat unsavowry
as boatmen moored at Gas Street wsed L& as a public
convendence. 0then Localdities suggsered similarnly and
conditions were sometimes S0 Linsanitany that the canal
company had to spread chlordide og Lime on the towpath.

A shont distance grom the tunnel 48 a fowr-way junction
witn three elegant bridges. Two are fwinover bridges

cast bi the Honseley Inon Works, the othen has the
initials BCN as part of the design. Turn night gon the
Newhall Branch and the Buuningham and Fazeley Canal

(map BF1], orn Left gorn the 0ozells Street Loop, where
Brwnmagem Boats have thein base. Diesel fuel is available
here, and there 45 the only pump-out facility on the BCN.
There (5 no towpath round the Loop. Straight ahead 44

the most dineet noute to Wolverhampton,

The date 1827 on the "Honseley" bridges 4is the
year Ln which improvements Lo the canal befween
Biuningham and Smethwick were completed. The original
canal, swweyed by James Buindley but apparently
Larngely built by Samuel Simeock, followed such a winding
noute along the contoun that Lt was suggested Simcock
was attempting to cut his inilials achoss Sitaggordshire.
The Company did not object as tolls were based on
mileage, As trhaggic increased on the canal the shanp
bends were a navigational hazarnd and cawsed considerable
delay. In 1824 Thomas Telford was engaged Lo suggest
Anprovements and one of lus proposals was to cut o4
the bends by a direct Line Lo Smethwick. The result can

ML1
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be seen at the next five junctions where Loops of the
old canal Leave on nejoin the new. Improvements were
also made Ln the design of towpaths and bridges.

The ofd canal had a single towpath and numerows
makeshigt bridges, particularly oven the entrances to
auns and basins, and many honses werne Rilled or Linjuwred
in aceddents on these namshackle structunes. 0rniginally
there were a number og swing and Ligt bridges on the
Main Line but these were such a hindrance to traffic
that they had been neplaced by the early 1800's. In
contrast Telfords canal has twin towpaths and
substantial turnover and side bridges,

On both the fLoop and the dirnect noute the finsi
noad bridge has ned wooden fine doors <in the parapet.
These give the fine services access to the canal fox
pumping water Lin an emergency. Most bridges along
industrnial sthetches of the BCN have such doons, excepi
where the distance from bridge to watern Level 48 greater
than 2§ {eet, the maximum £{§t of the Fire Brigade
pumps . The magnigicent two-storey Honseshoe Stables,
built in 1802, are on the night at Ladywood Junction.
The building 4» wsed by Biumingham City Counedk and 44
not open to the public but can be seen from the entrance
on the corner of Sheepcote Strneet.

Much of the commercial traffic on the BCN was
between mines and gactornies on the system, with beats often
only travelling a few miles. When the nailway companies
began to compete with the canals they were not Lnterested
in this shont-haul thaggic. 1t caused congestion on thedin
main Lines and there was ghequently no rail access to the
wonks which had developed alongside the canals. Instead
all three hailway companies in the area ( LNWR, GWR and
Midland) actively encouraged use of the canal by

building railway-canal interchange basins. Hene freight

MLZ
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could be transhipped Zo boats for delivery %o
gactornies, on ginished products ged into the rail
netwonk. The companies even operated thein own (leets
of "rnaillway" boats, One L{nterchange basin was just
begone Monument Road Bridge. The basin 48 s54LL in
watern, although the nails and transhipment sheds have
disappeared.

A tup along Icknield Pont Road Wharnf Loop to
the BWB maintenance yard and Rotton Park nreservoin
45 necommended, although 4f on oot this involves a
detour via Ladywood Middleway as the towpath 4is not
continuous. The neservoin, part of the Telgord
Amprovements, was opened Ln 1826 and entarged in the
1830's, The dam towerns above the yard, where the
elegant buildings ( a Telford design?) are in excellent
condition and a credit to BWB. 1§ the yard gates are
open Lt 45 possible to walk along Icknield Pornt Road o
the BWB o4fices and on to the dam. The reservoir recelves
water by geeder grom the Titgord Canal (see T1). 1t
supplies the 473" Wolverhampton Level via another feeder
to the Engine Branch. Formerly water was pumped back
into the neservoirn grom this (eeden in times of swrplus.

The Loop nejoins the New Main Line at another
gouwr-way juncition. The Soho Loop 45 straight ahead
but visibility to Left and rnight 45 not good - beware
og boats approaching grom eithern direction. Telfornd's
Line continues on the Left undern a fwinover bridge.

1§ walking take the night-hand towpath, the other is
wet and muddy <in places. The brick pier in the middle
04 the canal once cawuied the LMS Harborne Branch,
which Lost {15 passenger service in 1934 but remained
open for goods until 1963. The canal {5 now in a deep
cutting spanned by two fine bridges, both dated 1826,
Contrnany to the instructions daubed on Lee Bridge there

ML3



TOP- FORMER CANAL SHOP, KINGSTON ROW
BOTTOM: FARMERS BRIDGE TOP LOCK
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A8 no access at present to the (4sh and chip shop 4in
Dudley Road,

The Soho Loop Leads to the Biumingham Heath Branch,
opened <n 1801 to Matthew Boulton's Soho Wonks. This
was a group o4 workshops where cragtsmen produced
jewellery and silverware of high quality. The Works
was demolished in 1863 and the Branch now only runs as
gan as Hockley Pont, where the GWR interchange basins
have been converted into an adventwre centrne forn Local
youth., There are three strniking muwrals, two showing the
Port "then and now". The original stables stilL stand
and are wsed forn the centne's activities - a fam 44
housed in one end of the bLock on the night. Ample
moorings are provided forn visitons but Lt is perhaps
best to use those in the (st basin on the night,
which 48 fenced off grom the nest of the centre. The
attractive Victorian ternaced houses swurounding the
basins are being sympathetically nestoned, and the
whole site 44 an excellent example of the imaginative
nhenewal of an inner city area,

The Loop rejoins the New Main Line at Winson Green
Junction. Aften the tunnover bridge 48 a foll-.isfand
which once carnied an octagonal toll-office.
Unfortunately none of these attractive buildings have
swwived. Access grom the towpath was over a plank which
could be swung across the watern by the toll-clerk twrining
a Long Lever. The swivel mountings of the planks can
SLLL be seen on some of the toll-islands. The feeder
gnom Rotton Park to the Engine Branch <5 on top of the
embankment on the fLeft, which was buwilt at the same Ltime
as the New Main Line and cut across another Loop of the
ofd canal. The Winson Green end of the Loop was (illed
in to prevent boats bypassing the toll-istand. The
othen end became the Cape Aum, connected to the Main
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Line by a funnel unden the embankment. The whole of
the Anm 48 within the GKN wonks and 44 blocked by a
guillotine gate at the garn end of the tunnel.

Another Loop nan past Soho Foundny, opened .in
1796 by Boulton and Watt to manugactwre puwnping and
notary steam engdines. These engines had been assembled
at Soho Works grom parts manugactured edsewhere since
1775 and the Biumingham Canal Company had been a
negulan customer, Eventually Zhey purchased 19 of the
ginst 54 pumping engines bwilt. In 1802 the ginst gas
Lights even to be seen 4in public Llluninated the front
of the foundrny., These were produced by William Murdock,
who had also buclt a model Locomotive drniven by steanm.
Gas Lighting equipment soon became an important product
o4 the foundry but the pantnens missed the opporiunity
04 developing Murdock's Locomotive, The firnm Left the
Foundry <n 1850 and £t was acquired in 1895 by W & T
Avery Lonited, manufactures of scales and welghing
machines. Some of the oniginal workmen's cottages sLLLL
stand just insdde the entrance and there 45 a small
musewn, Visits can be awvranged by whiting Lo the
cwaton,

At Smethwick Junetion there L8 a chodice of {wo
noutes. Bean night for the 0Ld Main Line to Tipton via
Smethwick Locks on continue sthaight ahead on the New
Main Line. This also Leads to Tipion but nemains on the
453" Bioundinghan Level gon a few miles gurthern. Follow
the 00d Main Line 4§ you wish to visit the Engine
sranch and the Titfond Canal, on take the New Line gon
the quickest noute to the Wednesbury 0£d Canal and the
Nethenton Tunnel Branch., The chodce 48 not crditical
as Lt 8 possible to change grom one £ine to the other
at Spon Lane and Brades Locks, 1§ walking along Zhe
New Line gollow the night-hand towpath., This 48 4in
betten condition and has more access points than the
Lefjt-hand one. 1% also connects with the towpath on
the old canal in several places and Lt 45 easy Lo
switceh grnom one fo the othen.
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Until the 19605 there wene two sets of Locks
at Smethwick, Buindley's oniginal Locks were on the
night, Smeaton's duplicate glight on the Lejt.
Brindley had taken the canal over Smetiweick swmndt
by six Locks nising Lo the 491' Level, with another
s4x back down to the 453' Level at Spon Lane. This
swmmit, only a thouwsand yards or so 4n Length, was
very wastegsul of watern and there wene Leng delays
at the Locks as trhafgic increased. In 1786 John
Smeaton was asked to Lowern the swmmit by cutting a
canal along the 473" contowr grom between the thind
and §ourth Smethwick Locks to the Wolverthampion
pound at Spon Lane. Thus three Locks at each end wenre
made nedundant. At the same time duplicate Locks were
budlt at Smethwick to deal with the volwne of tragsic.
The Brindley Locks have been jildled «n but the bricked-
up arch wiieh Led to them can be seen under Bridge
Street, and the chamber of the top Lock &8 intact with
the gates st standing amongst the nubble,

The Engdine Branch 48 on the Left beyond the Locks.
This crosses the New Main Line on Telgond Aqueduct, an
elegant structure in need of some attention. There 44
no winding hole on the Branch and steerens o gull
Length nawviowboats may prefer Lo wall the towpath,
There is access to Bridge Stneet as the Locked gate
has Lost its centrnal panels and only the gramewonk
nemadins. The WMCC and othern interested parties recently
excavated the site of the Smethwick Pump House, where
the James Watt punping engdine now in the Mlsewn of
Scedience and ITndustny (see BF3) steod grom 1779 until
1897, when it was moved to Ockern H{EL., The engine

went to the Musewn Ln 1959 and 48 s.ELL 4n wonking orndenr.

The foundations uncovered by the excavations clearly
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show the positions of the varnious parnts oy the engine
and the culvernts canrying water Lo the swnmdit Levels.
There arne plans to eventually open the site to the
public and this will add considerable interest to a
visit to the Branch,

Brasshouse Lane 45 a convenlent spot to moor
jor access fo the shops in Smethwick High Street.
The building just beyond the bridge was erected Ln
the Late nineteenth centuny fo house a pumping engine
that naised watern grom the Biumingham to the
Wolverhampton Level. The pump house has necently been
nestored and will be wsed as an ingonmation ofgice
gon the calton Valley Canal Park. This ambitious
project, gunded by WMCC, will create a Linean park
between Smethwick Locks and Spon Lane Locks.

The New Main Line, 4in a cutting parallel Lo and
below the ofd canal, was another Telford improvement
and enabled coal boats grom Wednesbury to bypass the
swnnit completely. 14 was opened Late Ln 1829 and as

the cutting has a maxonwn depth of 71 geet it attracted

comsdderable attention, 14 L5 sLLLL spectacular today,
particulantly when the gonse on rosebay willow-herb
are in full glower and the banks are a mass of coloun.
Both Lines now pass through modern tunnels unden
Telford Way, These wene opened in 1974 and are no more
than Lange concnete drainpipes covered with earth,
although they perhaps (LLustrate the change in eivil
engdneerning techniques and style since 1830,
Iimediately agtern the tunnel on the New Line 45 one
of Telgord's mastenpieces, the 150 foot span Galion
Bridge casit by the Honseley Tnon Company 4n 1829.
Sanuel Galton was a prominent menber of the BCN
conmittee. ALthough now only a footbridge it caviied
heavy noad thaggic until Telgond Way was constructed.,
The railway viaduct gollowing 44 a gine blue brick
structune also worthy of note.
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Smeaton's cutting on the 0&d Main Line above 45
only 41 feet at Lts greatest deptih and necesved Litile
attention compared with L5 neighbouwr. Howeven
consddering L& was constrweted gonty yearns eardier
Lt 48 a verny nespectable example of canal engdineering.
Coal grnom Jubilee PLt in West Bromwich was tipped into
boats through chutes at the wharf just beyond Swmndit
Tunnel until the pit closed 4n 1970, The ruin on the
towpath bank (5 where boatmen (and honses) used to
shelten while they waited to Load. A few hundred yarnds
gurthern along the 04d Line the M5 motorway joins the
canal and will nemain close by orn over Lt fon the next
ke on 50, The twrnover bridge at Spon Lane s Lo
enable honses (on pedestrians) to gain access to Spon
Lane Locks and descend £o 453" Level. The 0£d Main
Line bearns Lefi and crosses the New on another
TeLgornd aqueduct, a two-arch brick structure named
agten Stewartd another committee member (catlfed
Stewant on the nameplate). Chance's glassworks, dating
grom the 18305 and formerly extending as fan as the
A457, 4is on the Legt. The wonks made the glass fon
the Crhystal Palace in 1851 and was famous for its
optical glass, particwlarly Lighthouse optics. The
factory now produces micnoscope slides grom glass
manufactured elsewhene.

The Spen Lane Locks are not strietly parnt of
the Main Line; they are the stant oj the Wednesbury
0Ld Canal. However as a Length og the WOC below the
Locks was included in Telgond's improvements and
became a section of the New Main Line, the
distinetion 44 rathen academic, At the tail of the
top Lock 45 a cantilever split bridge. 14 diffens
grnom the three othen cantilevern bridges on the
system in that 4t has the gap jor the towding Line

Titfornd Branch gollows: gor continuation of ML twwn
three pages.
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The T.itgornd Canal

Tiis branch was opened in 1837 to serve the
colliendies and works in the Langley area. 1t
climbs via 08dbuny Locks to 511", the highest Level
sl navigable on the BCN and then runs to Titford
Pool, wiich ihas been a BCN reservoin sdince the days
of Brindley. As the canad connects with the pool
on the Level the section above the Locks serves as
a Laewr extension oy the resevodn.

The basdin on the Lest just agten Leaving the
Main Line senved the Mddland Tarn Distillens
Spring gield wonks and was the main destination of
the Thowas Clayton "gas" boats. This fiun was
based at 0Lldbuwry Junction grom 1389 to 1966 and
specialised (n the caiage oy Liquid cargoes,
particulanly crude tan and gas-waten grom Midlands
gasworks to the Springgield tan distilleny and,
wntdel 1955, fuel ol grom Manchestern to Langley
Green. The boats used jor these trnafjics had the
holds divided into tanks and covered over by glat
wooden decks, and they cawndied about 20 tons. In
addition to theirn distinetive appearance the boats
were decorated with a charactenistic {onm 0§ the
tradtional nose design known as "CLaytons Cabbages".
Throughowt the 19508 and '60s gaswonks trhaggdic
dectined and Claytons ceased trading on the canal
on 31 Manch, 1966, although they nemained active
as domestic and industrnial fuel ol supplierns by
road,

0Ldburny Locks have the chambers in €ine with
the Zowpati, an wwsual feature also gound at
Factony Locks at Tipton, which were bullt at about
the same tome. 1€ may be easien fo steer a boat
Anto suen a Lock but the design dees not seem Lo
have been generally accepted, as many (Lights built
in the 186405 (eg Walsall, Rushall) have the
taditional arnangement. The top oy the (light
passes close to the huge chemical wonks oy ALbright
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and Wilson and L4 the wind Ls from the west the
smell <8 distinetly unpleasant. The aun through
the wonks was known as the Jim Crhow Branch and
0Ldbury Locks arne sometines called "The Crow".
The onigin of these names 48 not clear but one
suggestion L8 that they referred to a Local
Andustrialis i,

Above the top Lock the feeder to Rotton
Pank neservoin s on the Legft by the pump house.
The f4inst give furlongs of this were made navigable
in the 18605 (The Tat Bank Brancn) but there was
Little trhafpic and the Branch had closed by the
turn of the centurny. Recirnculatony pwnping 45 sIKLL
cavied out when Rolton Park needs neplenishment
on there s heavy use of the Locks, although modenn
punps have replaced the oniginal engine. Langley
Maltings, a BCN Landmarlk, gollows the bridge
carrying the GWR 0Ldbury Brancn, although the view
off this Late Victonian building grom the canal Ls
maved by the concrete gencing erected along the
whandg.

Forn nail enthusiasts there are fine GWR
Lower quadrnant signals and an aitractive signal
box at Langley Green station. The 0&dburny Branch 44
SETUL open gon ghedght trhafgiic to the chemical works
and the electric thain stagg gon the vranch 48 handed
over here. Langley Green bridge has been widened .in
such a way as to complement the orniginal hather than
detnact grom it. The old bridge has six cast {non
arches while the extensions have Longitudinal gindens
with brick arches between. Beyond Langley Forge, an
ofd works now producing castings, the canal becomes
Less industruial and a pleasant thee-Lined strnetch
Leads to the two terminal branches and Titgord Pool.
The 1978 and 1982 TWA National Rallies were held
here, and the elevated section of the M5 crossing
the site did not seem to detract grom their success.
The greater part of both the Causeway Green and
Porntway branches was abandoned around 1960,

T2
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in the middle nathen than at the sdide. For a bridge
that 45 unique on the BCN it 48 4in a deplorable
condition, with pant of the handrail neplaced by old
gas pipes and the gap 4n the middle covered with
concrete.

Aftern the aqueduct the 0&d and the New Lines
part company and are fwither apant than indicated
on the map. The 0&d Line winds along the contour
towarnds 0Ldburny, the New joins the Wednesbury Canal
and heads directly for Tipton., Considering ginst the
08d Line. This passes an Lnterchange basin, a toll
nawvvwews, and Shenston's overglow wedin in quick
succession, The wein, an early BCN Lype, 48 a Long
brick-Lined depression in the bank with the towpath
passing achoss £t. The path will be submerged when
the wein 4s hunning but the water will be only a
gew millimetnes deep because of the Lange surface
area, The problem 44 unlikely Zo arnise unless there
has been Torrential hain.

The moforway again runs over the canal aften
Anchon Bridge and the Titgond Canal (Map T1) 4a
on the Legt halfway along this strnetch. The BCN
plays an <mportant nole in the disposal of drainage
watern ghom the elevated sections of the motorway as
well as grom othen noads, houses and gactornies. In a
heavy racnstonm the canal may receive 10 million
gallons per mile per day. The M5 ginally Leaves the
canak at Stone Street Bridge and heads south across
the Houghton (onChemical.) Aum. This private aun
was the Loading point for one of the Last negulan
commercial trhaggics on the BCN, Until 1974 Algred
Matty's boats caviied phosphorus waste from
Albright and Wilson's chemical wonks to the
Rattlechain marlhole at Dudley Port. There were
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once wo aums here with a shared towpath but only
one 48 sLULL in watern, Moor at Whimsey Bridge gon
the excellent shoppind facilities in 0&dbury.
Just beyond this bridge are the offices of T.¢ S.
ELement, a {4um once well-known as canal carriers
but now only L{nvolved in road transpont.

The 0Ldbury and Brades Loops of the canal wenre
cul off by dmprovements in 1821, A dny section of the
0Ldbury Loop can be gollowed between Birmingham Strneet
and Bromgond Road, where Chwich Stneet Bridge 8244
stands, but Little else nemains. The only trace of
the Brades Loop 4is the side bridge at the fan end,
whene part of the Loop became a basin aftern the
sthadightening, Brades Locks and the Gowen Branch
goLlow on the night. 1§ Lintending to crwise through
Netherton Tunnel descend the Locks and join the New
Main Line.

Agtern Stewart Aqueduct the New Line joins the
Wednesbury 0Ld Canal at the boittom of Spon Lane
Locks and passes a toll-island and two turnover bridges.
The second, at the side of Bromford Bridge, was budilt
because the towpath on the night past the Bromfornd Iron
and Steel Wonks was closed. As gan as the Tzon 0&d Turn
Loop the New Line is an improved section of the
Wednesbury Canal and there is another early overglow
wein on the Left., The section of new canal that cut off
the Tzon Loop follows and the Wednesbury 0£d Canal
(map WOCT) Leaves on the night at Pudding Green Junction.

The canal grom Wednesbury to Biumingham was the
fixst section og the BCN to be opened, on 64h November
1769. This was not surprising as the main obfective of
the ondginal proposal forn the Biumingham Canal was a
connection with the Wednesbury mines, The Lower cost
04 canriage by canal had a dnamatic efgect. The retail
price of coal in Biumingham was halved and in 1770 there
was monre coal delivered than the town could wse.
0niginal structurnes, Lif any sXlL exist, along the WOC,

MLTO



WY Chnte cony )

(BOAT Baibing YaAD) w.n viaLt

~ \ ‘ .
¥ - ! VoS
e 1260 QLY /
Sca TURM ¢

’
’

4 5
A6

'{""‘;,\fgnunv

(0ns
7 worKs)

[PERCY Bk wWokks)

UDIING

yoie — = [
ir.-‘-g.'.,-s;.'m#“".- =\ R
S NEW. Man LINE (15 mi10) s
= 7-”.'3‘1;'-1"&- ot :un_ﬁmnw

F r ®) [AldloN pRIDGE] |
s WEST GREEM JunNCTION 10w Gricee fox '
me;wu R ) e i
WP |
W ALBION ROAD N :
Con — '
Sar B fALBron Bnicw \| 2=y et !
Bl. [ON  awvrue w“‘z‘lmmr T e . :
stice £ : ===y SHEEL YT '3 :
(cLhry Pir) wWarwp : y __ . views " \.‘ !
AN 5 1
O X i St TR Qg =0 .\ :
2N e A m by [
sieepape, @ IEONBRENCH i} ! :
—t(eunms F == 4= (1% S22, Il 11 O ! SO 1
ENY AU % ¥ N BRANCH " ’
WHALEY CotLtERIES) f UNtoN BRA :: !
- e e S T ': ==
D o3
r 1 4 ' e
frmmm———— e P o(msiom Goass Y =S
DY , REILWAY
,: ' 3 “"'J m!l““nﬁ'ul % 7 :_"“-
_________ 3 S
; P [
* 1
z S sh-b 2%
- |
3 DELTR EXTRUDLY o
2 METALS Co LT 3
o + ‘. e
A __J ;\unur:{ AT
b - vu
cZ[ L 3
5 (VULcAN Tues Woivs) 2
........ 3
! At
....... : Fed o
L R
g —
“ ] GreeN  [wf DPH
FrET == (PAKEFIELD
| BRick works)
o 6Pp o
FI]A Sho? -(—' WEST BlomwicH BELPER BAUGE l\ n"‘or PH B8RV,
| T cLwic, T,
vo3 GREETS GREEN RoAY S Bl
‘—"s. e (ROVAL o e e Wpn 4oi yol,
’ e 4 A [ERCLE PR
WORKS) T g 7 VyiRed uar
“EETS P e |- NOIKS) -
CRELM W S i i
ISINS Pt g SR ¥
+ . yo % . - —-
R o go. N \ =
D o ’ w
N @ i = "
‘ ‘ $ w
4 7/
) v
. ] 1 g
‘. i o
i %
FElwrneg 2
Woc 1 e G




Wednesbury 0£d Canal
(4including the Ridgacre Branch)

Agtern Pudding Green Junction the "improvements"
o4 the New Main Line are Left behind and the 0£d
Canal heads towards the once productive coal measwres
south og Wednesabury. The WOC L8 sLLLE predominantly
an indus trial canal but the many basins, awms and
branches built to serve gactornies and mines have
atmost completely disappeared. O0nly the Large
Luanshipment shed (not visible grom the canal) and
trhaces of the stables mark the site of the AlLbion
intenchange basins, now cccupied by a siteel
stockholden (GKN). The odd name of Greets Green
possibly derives grom a Local deposit of gravel
‘"g)b('/t") .

Rydens Green Junction 44 noteworthy for the
nemarkable odouwrs which often issue from the nearby
chemical factornies. Bear Left here fon the through
noute to the Tame Valley on Wyrley and Essington
Canals via the Walsall Canal, orn continue along the
WoC towards Hadley Bridge. This 4is dated 1864 but the
brickwork in the middle of the bridge appears Lo be
much oldern than that on eithen side. Thus the date
nefperns to the widening of an eanlfien brnidge, which
Ltself may have been a neplacement (c.1800) for one
on the BCN swivel on drnaw bridges, orn 4Lt may even
have been contemporaneous with the canal., 1§ this
were the case then £t would be the oldest brick
arch bridge on the BCN, The §ire doons here are
fitted with nollens to assist the passage of hoses
to and grom the canal below.

At Swan Brnidge Junetion the Ridgaere Branch
Lies stnaight ahead and the ondiginal £ine of the
WoC, which became known as the Batls HiLL Branch,
A5 on the Legt.Swan Bridge intenchange basin has

woci
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been nestonred to navigation but the nemaining 4%
miles of the old Line has been Levelled since Lt was
abandoned in 1960, In spite oy {ts name tihe canal
did not extend as fan as the town of Wednesbury, on
the opposite side of the valley oy the River Tame.
Instead Lt followed the contour along the side oy the
valley through Golds Greento near ithe llednesbury -
Bouningham noad. Unforntunately there 48 nothing here,
elthen in the form oy swwiving canal sthucturnes or
a more modern memordial, to indicate that the WOC was
the ginst seetion of the BCN to be opened, and that
the nesulting many yeans of prosperity fon the region |
began with Wednesbury coal.

The Ridgacre Branch

There 48 no winding hole along this } mile branch:
Swan Bridge Junction 45 the Last point where Lt is
possible to tunn a boat that is Longer than the width
of the canal. The reclamation and Landscaping work at
the junction and afong the Ridgacre have been carried

out by the West Midlands and Sandwell Councils and the
BCNS.

The Swan Village Gasworks, most of which was
demolished 4in 1975, 48 of histornical interest. 1t
was budlt in 1825 by the Biuningham and Staffondshine
Gas Light Co., one of the fwo companies that supplied
Biumingham, One of the st acts of Joseph
Chamberfain when he became Mayor of Biwmingham in 1873
was to begin negotiations forn the purchase of the two
gas companies by the Corporation. The progits grom the
muniedipal sale of gas were then wsed to help offset
the cost of borrowing forn his ambitious programme Lo
Amprove sewenage, public health and sLwn clearance.
These wene probLems that Biumingham had neglected fon
many years and drastic action was needed. The programme
was a success and "Bruwnmagenm Joe!" Chamberlain's
neputation was made.
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The ex-GWR system 4in this area suffered severely
grom the rationalisation and closure of Lines. Swan
Lane at one time had three Level crossings and {wo
signal boxes within a few hundred yards. Now there
are none. However the WNMCC has converted 23 miles
of the disused Biouningham-Wolverhampton main Line,
grom Swan Lane through West Bromwich into a "Parkway".
This 48 designed to be used as a footpath, as a trail
gor joggerns, who can use the exercise equipment
provided at various points, and as a cycle trhack
(the st Link Ln a proposed 40 mile route around
Boumdingham and the Black Country). There are also
notice boards explaining the geology, natural
histony and Lindusirnial archaeology of the route. A
Leaglet giving further details 48 available grom the
WMCC PlLanning Department, County Hall, Birumingham.

The Last stnetch of the Ridgacre passes a housing
estate on the Legt before reaching what must be the
Least inspining terminus on the BCN, 1€ .45 noit
unpleasant but Lacks a gocus of interest, and
gacilities are almost non-existent., Children may feel
that a visit to the playground makes the whole trip
wonth-while, as the slide on the side of the hill
must be one of the Longest in the West Midlands.

The shont (about } mile) Dartmouth and Halgonrd
Branches were opened in 1828, one or two yearns after
the Ridgacre. The Datmouth and the Jesson Branch
lan ofgshoot of the Halgond) have completely
disappeaned, The cowwse of the Halgond Branch can
sEULL be traced, although most of the canal has been
filled in on 4is dny. 1t 48 a pity that the navigable
section of the Ridgacre was not extended a few yards
funther duning the necent dredging and Landscaping Ln
this area, and the junction with the Halford excavated
to fonm a winding hole.
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at Buindley's Spon Lane Locks, ox on the Loops of the
08d Main Line towards Bimmingham, would be the oldest
on the system,

The New Main Line continues undern Albion Bridge
past the Union Branch, which once connected with the
WoC on the night, 1o Albion Junction and the Gower
Branch., Follow the Lefit-hand towpath after Union
Futnace Bridge Lf Lntending to walk to Brades Locks.
The Gowenr Branch, opened in 1835, was builft after £t
had been decided not Zo continue the New Main Line
achoss the area known as the Island towarnds Tipton.,
Howevenr begore the Branch was finished the decision
had been reversed and the Island Line was completed
An 1838, Follow the Gower Branch and ascend Brades
Locks 4§ heading gon Dudley Tunnel, and the Black
Countrny Musewn. The Zop dwo Locks at Brades gonm the
only stairncase pair orn "niser" on the BCN, T. A4
a double Lock where the middle gate and ground paddles
senve both as the top gate and paddles §orn the bottom

Lock and as the bottom gate and paddles fon the top Lock.

The 0£d and New Lines are now nunning parallel a

few hundred yarnds aparnt. The side bridge on the 08d Main

Line agtern Brades Hall Junction 44 the wonst on the BCN,
as the deck of the bridge has completely disappeared and
onky the inon beams remain. Furtunately it is possible
to avodid the bridge by walking across the waste Land
behind, At Tividale toll narrows the overflow wein has
a nail sLoping gently down to ground Level Lo ease the
passage of towing-Lines, After Dudley Road and Gilberts
bridges the 0£d Line neaches Tividale Aqueduct over the
Netherton branch, There 44 a waten point hidden in an
wamarked box (BWB key) at the far end of the Aqueduct
and a sanitarny station on the Branch belfow.

The New Main Line crosses a Long embankment, which
includes two aqueducts, to Dudley Pont Junction. The
embankment sufgered a serious breach on 9th Septemben
1899 and s4ix miles of the Biwmingham Level were drained.
The force of the water cut a chasm 80 yards wide as £t
powred Linto the adfacent marthole, which had probably

ML11
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been worked too close to the canal and weakened the
embankment. Rattlechain brickwornks was almost swepi
away and {5 enforced closwre threw many Local people
out of work, The embankment was rebuilt and Lt was
probably at this time that the arches carnying the
two aquedects wene extended. Tunn Left at Dudley Pont
Junction gon the Netherton Tunnel Branch. 1§ walling
Lowards Boumingham note that the Twwnover bridge at
the function .sthe Last before the Gower Branch.

Netherton Tunnel was built Lo nelieve the
congestion on the Dudfey Tunnel noute and was completed
in 1858, The engineern was James Walker, who had already
buclt the Tame Valfey, Rushall and Bentley Canals. The
tunnel has fwin towpaths with passing places for honses,
seven ain shagits, and 48 seventeen feet wide at the water
Level. 11X was Lit by gas and Later by electrnicity generated
by a turbine at the aqueduct. The twibine house and the
pipe cavying water grom the Wolverhampton Level fo drive
the twibine can st4LL be seen. The funnel has necently
(1984) ne-opened after a Long closurne fon repains.

The 08d Main Line passes through an indusirial area
that has seen betten days to Dudley Pont Bridge. There
were wharves and warehouses here handling goods fo and
greom Dudley and the "0&d Port Hotel" stood until the Late
19705 on the site now occupied by a car saleroom and
garage. The indusiny that has accompanied the ofd canal
sdnce Smethwick gives way Lo housing estates agtern the
nailway bridge. Thomas Monk, a canal cawier, had a base
near Tipton junction in the early 18005, He nan a
passengesr service on market days grom Tipton to Biumingham
which was 40 successful that by 1830 4t had been extended
to nun daly to Wolverhampton, The boat was a "packet"
named "Euphnates" and had gt and second class
accommodation. The service continued until the Stowr
Vatley Railway opened Lin 1852. There 44 no Lurnover
bridge Lo the Dudley Canal and the most direct noute 4L
on foot 45 to Leave the 0Ld Line at the next bridge,
dwwn night over the canal and then keep furning Ledit
until you awvvive at the Dudley Road Bridge.

ML12
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The Dudley Canal Thust nuns thips into the tunnel
and theirn electrically powered boats are moored when
not in use just past the sitop Lock. The embarkation
point <8 on the tunnel side of a Locked gate on the
towpath, and unless special arrangements have been
made (tel: 02]-520-5321) the only access forn pedestrnians
A8 through the Black Country Mwsewn, The Musewn 44
based on an industrial village as Lt might have been in
the Last centuny. The houses and shops have original
gittings, there 48 a pub, a boat dock and some
interesting nawvow boats including a "railway" boat and
an {ce-breaken. As Dudley Tunnel has no fLowpath boats
had to be "Legged" through by the boatman Lying on his
back and walking along the tunnel wall. The Tunnel 44 at
present closed forn nepain but the Thwust are continuing

4
+ MUSEUM ENTRANCE (2007) BLACK COUNTRY MUSEum %
""" - |} -
y LORD WARY'S 21k
_________ 5 L\ chnAL s
<, TE 4
(G" = (LIME KiLng) g
y o 7oy
BRIDGE PARKHEAD Ly
LOCKS —> —-
DUDLEY CANAL (MAPDS) ﬁ
z
BATSONS ¥ P DUILEY
LuBeNTS (/puise’ §gp. 225 \\ Svennmmpron TUNMNEL R

Lo nun shont ips to Castle ML Basin and Cathedral
Anch. There 45 also an exciting scheme {o comstrwuet a
branch grom the main tunnel fo one of the caverns 4Ln
the underground Limestone wonkings. 1§ the funnel
neopens see Map D5 gon entrhy regulations.

The 08d Main Line winds through Tipton past the
Cononation Gandens on the Legt and the (wen Sineedl
nedevelopment on the night. This i an attractive and
imaginative housing scheme that blends in well with
the canal, ALL services are available along Owen Street
and a visit to "The Fountain Inn", headquarterns og
"The Tipton Stasher" might be of interest. A short
Lndustial strheteh Leads to Factony Junetion, where the
0€d and New Main Lines ne-join. The necently nenovated
Malthouse stables are just before the Junetion.
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The New Main Line continues along the embankment
griom Dudley Pont Junction and crosses three more
aqueducts. The §inst 48 a modern concrete trough which
neplaced Telgond's aqueduct in 1968, The second crosses
the nailway and was <tself once crossed by the Link
between the Stour Valley and the Walsall-Dudley Lines.
The thind, Puppy Green Aqueduct, 44 an oflder structure
with only 8'3" headrnoom above the noad, Dixon's Branch
jollows the narrows protecting ithe embankment. This
; mile branch was opened <n the 18204 and ran to the
Honseley Tronworks, where the characteristic BCN
tunnoven bridges were cast, The g also built the
pinst Lrhon steam-ship, the "Aawn Manby", in 1§22 and
the Vome of Discovery fon the Festival of Britain 4in
1951, as well as countless bridges, pierns and steel
buildings erected in many parts of the world.

When the Island Line was constructed £t connected
with a branch of the Tipton Green and Toll End
Communication (see also W3) at Puppy Green. This joined
the older canal between Locks 3 and 4 and then another
branch nan as farn as Three Fuwwmace Bridge. These branches
wenre upgraded to become part of the New Line and Factory
Locks were constructed to naise the canal to the
Welverhampton Level. The TG £ TEC has been §illed in but
the Tipton Green section has been Landscaped and <is used
as a footpath, This runs through the chamber of Lock 2,
which 8 AL intact., The boat yard just past Watery
Lane Junction occupies a gommen railway interchange
basin. Three Fwwace Branch was unuwsual in that the
platiorms of Tiplon station were bullt overn LL.

Factony Lacks show several intferesting featuwres,
There 8 a fine cantilever bridge at the tail of the
bottom Lock, and the BCN gauging station, or weighing
dock, 45 next to the top Locl, The gauging of boats
was undertaken so that the amount of carge carwried,
and hence the totl, could be quickly determined. New
boats had thein greeboard measwred at fourn points when
enpty and when Loaded with weights. The tolk
collectons would be Lnformed of the "dry inches"
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cornesponding Lo a particularn tonnage and could
easily cheeck a boat using a gauging rod, Just
beyond the lock s a Boatnwt's Mission Hall, now
wsed as industrdal premises - gor Anforumation
concertndng these Halls see WS, The top Lock has
no bypass overnjlow wein, This L8 a characternisiic
of all BCN top Locks and was to meet the Legal
obligation that any swiplus watern only overglowed
into mall stneams, rathen Lthan nan to waste down
the Locks.

The site of the GWR Tipton railway basins,
now an Lndustndial estate, 45 on the Left agten
Factony sridge (naned agter a nearby soap gactony).
The unique Ligt bridge <n the Btack Country Mwsewn
once spanned the canal between the two basins hene
and a chain testing (on proving) house stood on the
garn bank until vandalised beyond nepain in the mid-
19708, Tidis proving howse was sonilar to the one
AT standing at Prinose HOLL (see D§), except
that the chains cowld be winched out of the boats
Lnto the building, tested unden strain, and then
Loaded into railway wagons. Thus testing and
transnipment could be cawvied out on the same site.

Anothen Long Loop of the 04d Main Line was cut
044 by the comstruetion of Coseley Tunnel, opened
An 1837, The old canak, the Wednesbury Oak Loop, was
on the night at Bloomgield Junction. The southern
section was abandoned <n the 19505 although the
nonthern pant 4s sLL navigable as far as the BWS
workshops and punping station at Bradley (WOLT-3).
The New Line enters a cutting agten Bloomgield toll
nawvows and unfess the fence by Wallbrook Bridge
has been repairned there s access to the shops in
Coseley (3 mile walk atong Central Dnive). Ceseley
Tunnel was built with a fubl width of waten and fwin
towpaths, although the nest of the {mproved Line
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The Wednesbury Oak Loop

This canal (alse known as the Bradley Branch
on Aum - a negleetion of 448 present truncated sitate)
was a particulanly torntuous Length of the 04d Main
Line, goflowing the contoun round Coseley (Hunst) HiLE.
Proposals to cut off the Loop by a canal grom Deepgields
Lo Bloomgield were made as early as 1793, and when this
Gnprovement was ginally completed <n 1837, it neduced
the distance grom 4% miles by way of Bradley to 1%
miles through Coseley Tunnel. The Loop regained some
0f £ts Lmportance as a through route, but to the
Walsall and Tame Valley Canals, when the Bradley Locks
Branch was opened 4in 1849, This connection, which would
have been a useful alternative nonth - south noute
today, was closed in 1961. The southern part of the
Loop, including the Ocker HiLL Branch, was abandoned a
pew years eanliern. 14 was only the thansfer of the BWB
workshops grom Ocker HALL to Bradley <n the early
19505 that saved the nemaining 13} mifes.

In the eawrly nineteenth century Bradley was the
centhe of the rnegion's {ron industry, based on the
wonks established by John "Tron Mad" Wilkinson between
1766 and 1772, Then the canal traversed a typical Black
Countrny Landscape with coke-ovens, {ronmvonks, engine
howses and brickworks set amongst coalpits and spoll
heaps. Today the noute winds through a mixture of
nesidential and industrnial areas, most of the despeliation
hav.ing disappeared in reclamation schemes, as 4s evident
soon agten Leaving the Main Line and passing under
Deepgields Bridge. On the Left one such scheme 45 Ln
progress on the site of Cappongield Colliery while on the
night basins and wharves, on thein remains, are the only
obuious indications that there were once several
collienies where there 45 now housing and open space.

Cappongield Pond was an imporntant source of water
forn the BCN with two pumping engines working in 1813,
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The supply was not neliable however, as mining
activities duained the pond, and 4in the great drought

of 1326 only 4000 Lockfuls were provided §rom this
sounce, compared with 65000 Lockfuls ghom mines engines.
One engine was moved Lo Ocken HLL and the othen sold
An 1833, although water was stiLL obtained from collierny
engines in the area, parnt of the cosit og the engines
being paid by the Company.

Severnal of the bridges on the Loop had intriguing
names, Lnviting specuwlation as to thein ondgins. Blue
Button Bridge was one; Roiton Bruunt Bridge on the closed
section anothen, Agten Capponfield Stop there 45 a wall
topped with barbed wine and broken glass for several
hundrned yarnds on the Legt - an extreme example of the
policy of nestrnicting access to the canal grom nearby
housing estates. The Bayer enamel works, necently
demolished, was a reminder of one of the indusinies
(fapanning was another) gon which Bilston was renowned.
The famous collection of Bilston Enamels 4s now in
Bantock House Museum in Wolverhampion. A particularly
well-preserved nollen, designed Lo prevent abrasion of
the brichwank by towing-Lines, can be found under Banks
Bridge.

The canal now passes Lthrough parnt of the GKW
Sankey complex. This gium L8 perhaps best known fon
the manufacture of automatic vending machines, but
Bankgield Wonks produces electrnical Laminates. Furthen
Lange works are along Vudley Street and Bankgield Road
towands the centrne of Bilston., Little nemains off the
internchange basin on the Legt, on, agtern Pothouse
Bridge, of the Loop cut off when the Line was straightened,
although the gar end fonms part of the basin at the
BWB Wonrkshops.

Wilkinson's Hall Fields inonwonks, together
with associated mines and engineering wonrks, covered

88 acnes and 4in 1796 was nesponsible fon one-eighth og
the countrny's iron production., The only sign now of

this industrial activity arne two grassy hillocks in the
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school playing fields opposite the BWB Depot, and
the Warn Memornial perched on Zop of a spoil heap.
Wilkinson was the §inst to nealise that a Boulton
and Watt steam engine could be wsed Lo provide the
blaszt fon a coke-firned gurnace, and thus he greed the
Andustrny grom its dependence on water power. He could
therefone build his works in the South Staffordshire
coalfield, where coking coal and iron deposits were
plentiful and Limestone near at hand. So strong was
his belief 4in the suitability of <ron gfon almost any
purpose that he paid his workerns with inon tokens,
Launched the §inst irnon boat in 1787, and was buried
in an Lron coffin in his own garden when he died in
1608, A cast-inon pulpit he made 48 Ln Hall Green
Stneet Chapel. "Inon Mad" he may have been but he
died a millionaine and owned eight of the Largest
Lwmonks 4in the country. He was also involved with
the Shropshire, Flint Coal, and Shrewsbury Canals -
the Latten at the time of construction of the <non
aqueduct at Longdon-on-Tean,

04 the many pumping siations that were once
active on the BCN only Bradley 4is sXLLL negulanly
in use. The oniginal Ateam engine has been superseded
by three submersible electrnic pumps which are operated
s4ingly on together, when the supply grom Chasewaten
and Rotton Park neservoins is insufgicient. Each
punp delivens 1000 gallons a minute (approximately
fwo Lockfuls per hour). The water 48 often bright
onange owing to the presence of £ron oxdide, and has
a distinetive smell, The Last few yarnds of the Loop
are wsed as moornings forn an internesting selection of
BWB craft, and the paraphernalia involved in canal
maintenance can be seen scattered around the yard.
There 48 now no s4gn of Tup Street Bridge and Little
nemains of the nest of the Loop through Batmans HALE
and Wednesbury Oak.
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grnom Factory Junction o Wolverhampton only has one.
The tunnel Towpath is wet in places and a torch would
be useful forn pedestrians.

The ofd Cannon Foundry, established .in 1826,
stood on the towpath bank agter Deepfields Fooit
Bridge until demolished in 1982-3, Gas cookens
are STLL manufactured in a modern plant on the
othern side of the road. The yard of ALfred Maitty
£ Sons (no Longer owned by the Matty gamily) is a
few yands gunthen on the Legt. This §oun L8 one of
the few canal carniers that has managed fo adapt and
swwive through the decline of commenrcial trafgic on
the BCN, finst by cavying industrial waste and nubbish
and Latterly by contract dredging. ALthough the company
also has othern interests (eg. crnanes) it continues Lo
operate tugs and mud boats on the BCN. The navigable
section of the Wednesbury 0ak Loop 48 on the night at
Deepgields Junction and 44 worth a visit, particularnly
L4 the Bradley pumps are operating.

Although the canal grom Veep jields to Aldersley
was upgraded in the 18308 Lt was not straightened
and the Main Line winds along the contowr past a
huge area of dereliet Land. This &8 all that nemains
o4 Bilston Steel Works, where the Last blast furnace
An the Black Countrny operated until 1980. There Ls
now a proposal gon opencast mining on the site. 14
this 48 approved Lt will nesult in a Landscape
rneminiscent of the Black Country 4in days gone by.
The canal 45 very Lndustrnial forn the next 23 miles
into Wolverhampton, although some of the factories
have closed in recent yearns. The fomer works of
John Thompson & Company, where the boilens for the
Fellows, Mornton and Clayion steam nawvrowboats were
made, follow Jibbet Lane Bridge.
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Wolverhampton was exceptional for the number of
nailway-canal {nterchange "stations" that were
constructed, The site of one, Ettingshall goods
shed, was just begore Rough HilLs Stop. This was
wunusual as therewas no basin and boats moored on
the Main Line while cargoes wenre transhipped.
Anothen, Chillington Whargy s some ;] mile along
the canal by Bilston Road Bridge. This 44 now the
best example of an interchange basin on the BCN,

The basin, shed and railway trhacks are all in good
condition and gonm part of the Wolverhampton Sieek
Terundnal, Transhipment sELL occuns here, wusing

the crane on the Legt of the basin, but now steel

48 tnans ferrned grom hadl to road rather than fo
canal, Chillington Wharg 48 of historical interest
and must be a prime candidate gor preservation.
Additional notewonthy geatures are the wall along
Chillington Street, built of Stajgordshire blue
bricks with ned brick paneds on the outer side,

and the bollarnds at the gate to the yand to prevent
damage by wagons. Shrubbery Interchange”Basins opposite
the pantly demolished power station have disappeared
undern the British Oxygen wonks.

The pill-box on the cornern of Commercial Whanrg
A5 presumably a wartime nelic, Even Lf the Likelihood
o4 enemy Lngantry or saboteurns advaneing along the
towpath was remote the threat Lo the BCN §rom bombing
was veny real, As most naids were at night stop planks
were placed in the ghooves in bridge holes and narrows
everny evending and removed the following morning.
Thus 4§ the canal was breached cnly a short section
was drained. The side bridge on the night befone
Honseley Fields had some §ine horse treads, brick
nidges designed to prevent the honse sLipping, until
a gas main was Laid along the towpath Lin the 1970s.
Instead of the brickwork being nreplaced when the
trhench was §illed a crude concrete nepain was cavried
out. Such vandalism can be seen {in many places on
the BCN and negflects badly both on BWB and West
Mideands Gas.
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Honseley Fields Bridge has been attractively
painted underneath and the junction with the Wyrley and
Essington Canal gollows on the right. This provides an
alternative noute to BUuningham via Walsall on a much
more ruwhak journey to Salgord Junction than along the
Main Line. There are a number of nineteenth century
buildings borderning the canal as Lt approaches
Wolverhampton Tunnel, Lincluding Union MLLL, an .Onposding
give stoney building with cast irnon columns Lnstead of
internal walls, ML Street Interchange Basins, where
carngoes wene Lowened into boats through the gloon of
the goods shed above, have been filled in, as has Fellows,
Monton and Calyton's ALbion Wharnf, although some of the
buildings suwrwive. A nollen protects the brickwork on
the bend after Corn HALL §rom abrasion by towing Lines.

Wolverhampton Tunnel, full width and with a
dry Zowpath, was bullt abowt 1850 when the canal
was diverted Lo allow the construction of the High
Level Station. The aun at the BWB depot was the
oniginal Line of the canal. There £s ample mooring
space by the netaining wall built of gurnace slag
(einden) on agten Broad Street Bridge, where the
site of Hay Basin has been Landscaped. Boith
this basin and the previous one shared a siding
grom the main railway Line and were wsed as small
internchange basins. V.isitons to Wolverhampton
by canal are provided with a map of the town,
something nail thavellens have to do without!

The main shopping centre 44 along Lichfield
Sitneet.
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Before Leaving the top Lock of the Wolverhamplon
pLight note the ornate Lamp bracket on the Lock
cottage, and the cast-inon kerb and BCN wedight
restruietion notice on Little's Lane Brldge. This
45 one of several oniginal bridges on the §Light
although £t 45 noi such a gine example as Vunsitall
Park sridge by Lock 19. The remains og a gate
achoss the towpath can be seen at the exit grom
the bridge hote. The Lange black building on the
Legt 48 the transhipment shed gor the Henbert Stneet
(ntenchange basin., The present shed dates fgrom
1935 but the basin was constructed by the Shrewsbury
and Bouningham Railway Ln the early 18508, The
S & BR had nreached Wolverhampton £n 1549 and
although <t had nunning powers along the LNWR
Stour Valley Line to Biumingham this was not
completed until 1852 and the S & BR did not gain
access until 1854, An Lnterchnage basin was theregore
budlt s0 that gjreight could be gorwarded Lo
Boundngham, Tn 1854 the S £ BR amalgamated with
the GWR. The LNWR also had an interchange point
here as one of theirn sidings nan alongside the
basin by Lock 2, Thus Lif one includes the MidLand
Railway Canal Vepot on the Whyley and Essington
thene werne s4ix Large and three small transhipment
points in Wolverhampton. Six were operated by
the LNWR, although almost certainly noil all were
in use at the same time, two by the GWR and one
by the MR,

There were wharves or basins in almost every
pound of this gLight until Lt neached Lock 15 and
the Staggord Road. Below Lock 9 the Wharf by the
Couneil incineraton has gained a new Lease of Life
and bollarnds are provided for boaters wishing to
moon and dispose of rubbish, The steps on the
offsdide at the taik of Lock 10 have an interesting
modern addition in the foxm of a concrete channel.
This is o divert watern down the siteps Lf the
cwlvert carviying the overglow grom the pound above
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becomes blocked. 1§ on foot pass under Fox's Lane
Bridge and not along the path to the night, which
is soon separated grom the towpath by railings.
The fornmen GWR Line fo Wolverhampton Low Level,
now onfy used by coal trains to Build was powenr
station, crosses the canal between Lock 11 and

12 and 45 followed immediately by the 22 arch
Stoun Valley Viaduct.

There 48 a waten point by the garnden of the
demolished Lock cotitage at Lock 15. This was the
gournth cottage down the glight, the thind
ondginaklly being by Lock 10 but Latern moved to
Lock 9, and the second by Lock 5. The Bridge Inn
has been alterned out of all necognition and 4is
now used as industnial premises. The ELectrnic
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Construction Co. along the Stagford Road was
nesponsible fon the Liverpool Overhead Railway
in 1893 and the generating set gon the South
Staggondshine Thamways (see map WE). The canal
passes unden the high bLue-brick S &€ BR 0xley
viaduct ajten Lock 16 and the swwoundings become
almost nunal, with the nace cowwse on the Legft and
scnub and grassland on the night. The 12 arch
viaduct was the northenn Limit of Brunel's broad
gauge and Lt cawnies the only ex-GWR £ine Lo be
electrd jied.

Dunstall Park Bridge at Lock 19 48 superb and
almost cerdainly dates grom the opening of the
canal. Note the batter of the face of the bridge,
to add sthength, and the cuwwatwre of the top of
the arnch. To have neplaced the traditional paddle
gear on the Lock gates by modern hydraulics As
sunely inexcusablfe in such a setting. Like the Walsall
glight the Wolverhampton "21" have one odd Lock, No.20,
which has a single bottom gate. 0rniginally thenre
wene only 20 Locks in the fLight, with the botiom
Lock having a depth of 10 feet. This was so wastegul
04 waten that the Companly proposed to build a
neservon to supply L&, although there s no s4gn
oy thes., In 1784 the Lock was rebuwllit with halg
the depth and another Lock built above Lt. This was
at the time that John Smeaton was engineern gon the
Broadwatens Extensdion and the Biumingham and Fazeley,
on both of which he used single boittom gates.
He was preswnably also involved in the work here
and adopted the same design for the new Lock - the
present No.20, The nebuilt Lock 21 Leads to "Cut End"
at Aldersely Junction. Unforntunately the toll house
that once stood at the Junction has been demolished
and the brnidge, now minus £ts Lamp bracket, has been
nepasirned with concrete.
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THE BIRMINGHAM AND FAZELEY CANAL:

Fanmen's Bridge to Salfornd Juncition
(including the Digbeth Branch)

Map BF1 begins with the Newhall Branch, cne of
the wo teruninal aums of the 04d Bouningham Canal, In
1769 the ginst boats to bring coal from Wednesbwry
wene unloaded on this branch at Friday Bridge, which
at that time marked the end of the navigation, as the
2xtension to Newhall and the anm to Gas Sineet and
02d Wharf were not opened until 1772, There was
considerable argument over where the BCN should
tenminate, the Company altering thein orndiginal plans
and gavourning Gas Sineet/0Ld Wharnf but eventually
being compelled by an Act of Pwliament obtained by
the Landowner o complete the canal to Newhall,

Aftern passing Tindal Bridge there 4is a sanitary
station and water point and an interesiing collection
04 canal buildings (BCN houses No: 41,42 and 43 are
best seen grom Kingston Row). Ungortunately the canal
shop and ingornmation centre has now closed. The
Cambrian Wharng development here won a Civie Thust
awand §orn Biuningham City Councdll 4An 1971, James
Bruindley Walk fonms part of this and nuns beside the
canal as gar as Summer Row, passing the "Longboat"
public nouse and a plaque commemorating <he BCN'S
bicentenany, The centre of Biundingham can be reached
by walking along Cambridge Strneet. The rest of the
Newhall Branch has been Levelled, as also have
Gibson's tunnel, the Shropshine Union and Fellows,
Monton and Clayton warehouses {t passed undern, and
the Lock up to Awo basins where the Repertony
Theatre now siands.

The Binmdinghan and Fazeley began as a proposal
by a nival company gor a canal grom the collierdies
at Bilston and Wednesbury to Fazeley, with a branch
1o Biumingham, The BCN immediately saw the threat

BF1
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this canal posed to thein monopoly Ain the supply

oy ccal and a Lively public and Parliamentary batile
began., Eventually the BCN trdiumphed by obtaining
approval to set up a new company, with an almost
identical List of proprnietons, to extend the

Wednesbury Branch towands Walsall and to build a canal
grom Famwnern's Bridge Lo Fazeley., A yean ajtern this

Aet had been passed the fwo companies amalgamated,

tihe Fazeley Canal was completed 4n 1789, and trajgic

fo Biuningham was s3LL 4n the hands of the BCN, John
Smeaton was engineen oy the new canal and the coniracton
gon the seetion grom Farmen's Bruidge Lhrough Salgord to
Moworntn was John Sheasby. John Pinkerton was contractor
pon the remainder and, as on the Walsall and Dudley
Canals, his work was unsatisgactorny. Agtern many years o4
haggling over {inance Pinkerton ginally £ibelled the
BCN clenr and was fined £200 and sent to prison for

a month.

The B & F Leaves the Newhall Branch at Fawner's
siidge Top Lock and descends the "0&d Thirnteen" to the
372" Level (&he "New Thirteen" wene the Locks on the
Tame Valley Canal), This §&ight was once s0 busy that
there were Long queues oy boats waiting gon the Locks,
even though they were open day and night. Lamps wenre
provided gon might work and the posis and aums gor
these can be seen by Locks 2 & 3. They may well have
been enected in the eanly 18005, Proposals for a
parellel §Light fo ease the glow of thaggic were put
gorward <n 1830 but the area was s0 heavily budllt oven
that the estimated cost was prohibitive. Relieg was not
obtained until the Tame Valley Canal, which provided
an alternative route into Biouningham and the Black
Countrny, was opened in 1844,

Some of the sense of encloswre around the top few
Locks <5 being Lost as walls are demolished but this
soon neturns as the canal passes under Saturday Bridge
and enters a nwvow canyon betfween tall buildings.
Space forn building was at such a premiwn that the
gactornies nene were constructed over the side pounds

BF2
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of the Locks. There s a skip provided for nubbish by
Lock 7. The Biumingham Museum of Science and Indusiny,
built on the site of ELkington's Efectroplating Wonks,
goLlows on the LefZ, Exhibits include the James Watt
punping engine erected by the BCN at Smethwick <n 1779,
fewellens, nailmakens and gunmakers' workshops and a
steam Locomoitive, the LMS Stanier Pacific "City of
Biuningham". For many years the Musewn has §iumly
turned {ts back on the canal, although the BCN played
no small parnt in the stony of Biumingham indusitry.

The gate to Newhatl Sineet has been kept Locked and
anyone on the canal wishing to visit the Museum faces
a Lengthy detour. Howevern there are now plans to open
up the towpath as a canalside walk and forn the Museum
to be Linked to the canal. One wonders why it has taken
s0 Long gfon the BCN's assets to become obuvious.

The famouws Biumingham Jewellferny Quarter 4is beyond
the Museun and 4{s also wornth a visdt, particularty if
access 45 made easiern. The arches in the side pounds
by Lock § are the nemains of gormer buildings that again
made the maximum use of available space. The modern
equivalent 45 Brindley House which straddies the canal
below Lock 9. Ungorntunately this has bLocked the view
of the three anches of Newhall Street Bridge, and the
concrnete used Ln Lis consthuction 45 not 40 atiractive
as the brick of the buildings gwither up the §Light.

The bottom gate of Lock 11 48 nevernsed with the heelpost
and balance beam on the oggside, presunably because of
the nestricted space on the towpath side,

Snow H{LL Station has been demolished and the site
of the platforms is now a carn park but the bridge,
almost a tunnel, which once caviied the trhacks Astill
cnosses the canal, The city centne shops are a few

hundned yands grom 0Ld Snow HAEE and there 4s easy access.

Along the Hospital Pound are iwo unusual bridges. Barken
Bridge has one side cast irnon, the othen brick, and the
bridge carrying Lancasten Sineet has the back of a
wuinal gorming part of the parapet.

BF3
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The Vigbeth Branch

This Branch 46 } mile in Length and connects with
the Grnand Union (Wamedick & Bouningham Canal) at Warwick
Barn. 1£ 48 very much an Andustrnial canal and {8 almost
completely isolated grom the City around £t, as there
48 only one point whene Lt 4s possible Lo gain access
1o the towpath, This 4is at the §inst bridge agtern Aston
Junction, where a gate and spinal staircase wenre erected
in 1983, This could be a sign of change for the bettenr,
as the City envirnomment and open up fLowpath walks in the
City centne.

The date of opening of the Vigbeth Branch is wsually
taken to be 1799, the year in which the Wauwdick and
Binmingham Canal was completed and the Branch became
inpontant as a through route. 14 was probably partly on
even whotlly open some years befone this, as At was
authorised by the Biouningham & Fazelfey Act of 1783,

Ashted top Lock 44 a few hundred yands §rom Aston
Junetion and is goflowed immediately by Ashted Tunnel.
Do not stant to descend the Lock until you have checked
whether there s another boat in the tunnel. 1t there 44:
wait, 0therwise one boat will have fo reverse as there 44
no passing place. 1§ approaching ghom the opposite
dirnection do not enten the tunnel Lif a boat s descending
the Lock (the nush of water out of the tunnel when the
Lock 43 emptied 45 a warning to wait). The towpath
continues through the tunnel but Lt L8 wet and uneven 4in
places and part of the handrail has disappeared.

The pumping station beyond the tunnel has been
demolished and the recirewlating punp Lt housed was
puwrchased by Henry Fond for a museum in America, The
Lock pounds down the §Light badly need dredging and
are very shallow away grom the main channel. Below the
bottom Lock the bridges carrying the naillway to Curzon
Stneet and New Stneet §rnom anothen tunnel, this time with
a full width of water and ample headroom.
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The gt nailway Lo neach Biumingham was the Grand
Junetion Line grom Liverpool, which was completed Lo
Vauxhall in July 1837, The gollowing year the Line
was extended to Curzon Sirneet, where the London and
Biundingham Railway also opened a station. Bozh
stations became goods depoils when New Street was
completed <n 1854, but the .imposing entrnance to the
L & BR station s8L swwives. Both companies had
Lo comstrmel viaducts Lo neach Curzon Street. These
can best be seen grom Lawley Strneet, where Lt 44
obviouws that the GIR viaduct has another viaduct on
top. This was built when the inacks were hraised Lo
aun info New Street.

The Grand Union Canal joins Lhe Digbeth Branch
opposite the nearn og Lhe Gun-Bawel Proof House
(anothern gine building). Twwn Legd here fon Waueick
Bar and the ant deco style FMC warechouse, Do noi
attempt to pass to the night of the stop (sland:
the top of the submerged weirn 44 just below waten
Level. The Digbeth Branch continues sinaight ahead
to Di,gbe,th Basins, now deserted and gorfonn. 1§ you
can gain access to Fazeley Street note the boundary
stone in the baidge parapet, and the elegant 6acade
04 the FMC building.
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There 48 an awkward nawwows undern the A3§ befone the
canal neaches Aston Junction. Bearn night for the
Vigbeth Branch on tun Legd under the "Honseley"
bridge to continue Lowarnds Salgond Junction.

Aston top Lock gfollows Omiediately and 44
unuwsual in having iwo bridges: the "Honseley" and
the attractive old brick bridge at the tail.
Theonetically one tuwn-over bridge would be adequate,
but there s insufgicient room for such a bridge above
the Lock. With 4t sited at the tail, hornses coming
gom Fanmen's Bridge and tfaking a Line across to the
Digbeth Branch ( ox vice versa) would interfere with
boats using the Lock. Hence another braidge was provided
gon this thagfic. The next two Locks also have features
o4 Antenest. Lock 2 has a gate paddle on the boittom
gate, an unuwsual s4ght on the BCN whenre Locks with
s4ingle bottom gates are nomnally empiied by ground
paddles. The top gate of Lock 3 48 under the new
Varntmewth Middleway Bridge and this has been §itted
with a beam forn Lifting the gate when 4t needs
neplacement.

The Grazebrook blowing engine (see D6) s nearby
in Dantmouth Cincus and a detour can be made Zo view
this. Leave the canal by the passage by the top Lock,
turn night into MLL Street, climb the steps at the
parn end and walk through the subway to the middle of
the Cirews. Refurn via the next subway on the night.
This Leads into Chester Street and therne is access
back to zthe canal across the overnglow weirn at Lock 3.

Industrial and commercial prnemises continue to
bornden the B & F down the (Light as fan as Salfonrd
Junetion. When passing Locks 7 & § Look up at the
extravagant Victonian architecture of the building
towering over the canal on the rnight. The colowred
bricks and decornative columns and arches are certainly
inpressive although handly in keeping with the
{ndustrial processes of a gasworks. Lock 7 has a
cantilever foot-bridge at the taill, with a small gap

BF4
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on the fTowpath side wide enough fon the towing-Line,
thus avodlding the inconvendience of having e unhitch
the honse as a boat passed under the bridge. Access

to the outside workd s not easy along this Length

04 canal but L& is possible Lo reach Avenue Road by
Leaving the towpath just befonre the BCN boundary posi
and walking achoss the derelict indusirnial site. There
are severnal of Lthese concretfe BCN posts between here
and the botiom og the §Light. They are not as atthactive
as the eawlien cast-inon desdgn and the significance of
the Letten "D" 48 noi clearn. There 48 anothen striking
Vietorndian building, 4n ned brick with decorative work
over the windows, at the fonmen BR Asiton Depoi in
Avenue Road.

The inscription on the bridge caviying Rocky Lane
48 a necond of the Late nineteenth centuny sysitem of
Local government. Local Boards were the fore-hrunnens
of the Urban Pistrnict Councils which were established
in the mid-1890s8. The Aston Manon Board would have been
nesponsible fon the baidge becauwse Lt was not covered
by the oniginal Act of Paliament gor the canal. Unden
such Acts the canal company had to provide road bridges
and also to build accommodation bridges gor the owners
of Land bisected by the canal. 1§ extna bridges were
nequined at a Laten date then the Landowner on highway
authonity had 2o meet the cost.

The ofd stable buwilding and yard by Lock 9 are
unfortunately not accessible grom the towpath., There 4is
a gate Ainto ThimblLe ML Lane by BCN house No.70 but
this 45 ogten Lacked. 1§ you can obfain permission Lo
use £t note the gine wrought {wn arch at the sdite of
the Aston Manor Brewery. Lock 10 has a neversed bottom
gate with gate paddles, and a cantiliver bridge to
gacilitate wornking the Lock, The ginal pound of the
tLight 48 hemmed <in by tall buildings, now derelict
and with the noofs nemoved (Lo avodd payment of nates?).
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Access Lo the noad ghom the offside o4 Lock 11
i acrnoss waste ground used as a can park and 48 only
open duwring wornking houns., At othen times the gates
are Locked. Just aften Workd War 1 the Dunfop Rubber
Co. han a passenger boat service fon thein employees
between Holborn HALE (fon Aston Station) and Fort
Dunlop, 23 miles along the B £ F past Salgord Junetion.
The wonks had no trhain service and there were no buses
available at this time. The service Lasted gfrom April
1919 to August 1920 and over 5000 passengers a week
were carvnled. Five Ly boats were used, each seating
about 100 and §itted with electric Lights and hot-water
heating. An early form of outdrive engine was used
very successfully on the boats., A petrol engdine was
bolted on the cabin noof and the drive transmitted Lo
the propellon via two shafts, one horizontal and one
mounted vertically on the stern posi.

The canal now rwuns parallel with the A3§ 2o
Salgond Junction, past a closed hire boat base and
acnoss an aqueduct oven the River Tame. AL uregular
intervals along the towpath since Fanmenr's Bridge
there have been wooden posts, similan to bollarnds bui
in Ampossible positions gorn use as such. Agter Cuckoo
Bridge <t 44 mone obvious Zhat these are the sawn-off
stumps of telegraph poles, which once carrnied £ines
beside the canal into the heant of Biumingham,

Salfornd Junction 48 dominated by the Gravelly
HALL Motorway interchange, and there 44 bone-dry
dust wherever the elevated noads cover the ground,
Twwn Left here forn the Tame Valley Canal, half right
gorn the nemainder of the B & F, on sharnp night gon
the Biumingham and Warwdick Junetion Canal. Opened
in 1844 thes 25 mile bypassed the Ashted and Aston
gLights, saving 11 Locks on the trip grom Bordesley
to Salford. 1t became part of the Grand Union £n 1929.
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THE TAME VALLEY CANAL

The Tame Valley Canal was §inst proposed 4n 1810
agtern John Renndie's swwey of the BCN system, but the
BLL was withdnawn because of opposition by Landowners
and other canal companies, and doubits at that time
about the extent and value of the mineral resources 4in
the arnea trnaversed by the canal, 14 was noi until 1839
that the plans were nevived and when it opened in 1844
the Tame Valley was thus a nelatively Late addition to
the network., 1t was intended to relieve the congestion
at the Farmer's Bridge Locks by providing an alternative |
noute Lo Biumingham and the Black Country, to serve the
mines Lowards the Wednesbury end of the canal, and to
'elose the Valley of the Tame against future profects’.
The Last of these aims was perhaps encouwraged by memories
04 the batile fon the Biumingham and Fazeley (see BFI)
where the BCN had nanrowly defeated a scheme for a canal
gnom Wednesbury to Fazeley, which would preswnably have
gollowed a similar noute,

The Tame Vatlley iflusirates how civik engineering ‘
teehniques had developed since the days of the early
contoun canals, particwlarly with the stimulus provided
by the advent of the railways a few years before. The
canal 45 wide and straight with twin towpaths, the
Locks are grouped together wherever possible, and trnaffic
48 no Longer hindered by narwows at bridges and aqueducts.
There are massive embankments and spectacular cutiings
spanned by bridges high above the canal. James Walker
was the engineen. He was also nesponsible forn the
Bentley and Rushall Canals and the construetion og
Netherton Tunnel.

From Salford Junction the canal huns pasi a Loll
island and under part of the motfonway Lnterchange.
Several of the support columns are in the canal but
are noit an undue hazand to navigation. Biumingham
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was one of the §iwut Large industrial Zowns to have
a piped water supply and Salfornd Reservoir, opened
in 1831 by the Biumingham Waterwonks Co., marked the
stant of this development. The sowrce of the water
was the River Tame until sernious pollution made it
unsuitable (Lt 48 sXL heavily polluted)., The
punping station just begore the railway bridge was
parnt of the Waterwonks system.

1§ walking the fowpath in eithern direction choss
oven Witton Turnover Bridge, as all othern routes are
impassable. The night-hand towpath hardly exisis
between Salford Junction and this point and the Left-
hand one 4s blocked at the next bridge to prevent
unauwthorised access to the Large GEC works which border
the canal, The Gnid House below the well kept boittom
Lock of the Perry Barnrn glight was the intake for the
necirneulating puwnp above the {Lock. 0nly the foundations
of the pump house nemain but the Large pipe that canried
water up the fLight can be seen by Deykin Avenue bridge.
The dinection sign by BCN house No.77 has presunably
been moved grom Salford Junction.

The Perry Barn Locks, khnown as the "New Thirnteen"
to distinguish them grom the "08Ld Thirteen" at Fawmen's
Bridge, are in three ghoups: a pair here, four at
College Road, and a §Light of seven at Perrny Park. Take
care L§ using the Ladderns below the bottom gates of the
Locks as some have rungs missing orn very worn. The
swunoundings become Less industrnial agter Brookvale
Road Bridge but the Mé6 motorway, never far away grom the
Tame Valley along Tthis section, neappears and crosses the
canal, The No.l Reglux Valve below Lock 11 was part of
04 the necinculating pumping system, as also was the
No.2? Valve below Lock 7, By using these valves the glow
04 water could be reversed and the pounds drained for
maintenance wokk., On the opposite side of the canal 45 a
sports ground with a miniatuwre nailway running beside
the towpath.
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The shaft §on the Perry Well pump 44 in the
container base above Lock 11, This was a supply pump
nathern than a recirculatorny one, and although pumping
has not occwwied fon many yearns BWB sELL netain the \
night to use the shagt if necessary. There 48 a Ltypical
"Honseley" bridge spanning the ingilled arm between
Locks 9 and 10. In contrast to some of the ofderparits
of the BCN there wene very few basins and aums along the
<8t fave on six miles of the Tame Valley. This 4is
partly because of the cutiings and embankments which make
the construction of basins difgicult but even more Lt 45
as neglection of the Lack of Aindustrial development. There
was no mining at this end of the canal and the f§ew
gactonies that were built arvived nelatively Late
(GEC was Late nineteenth century). These were Large
wonks with Long canal grhontages and pregervred canal side
wharves rather than basins.

----

The M6 again crosses the canal before the ginal
§€ight of seven Locks. With a park and sitadium on the
Left and a view back over the motorway these are
nesonably pleasant to work, although excessive use of
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concrete fon nepains detracts grom the appearance of

the Locks. Perry Reservadin at the bottom of the §Light

45 not a canal neservoin but parnt of the Bioumingham
waterwonks system. Lock 2 has steel bottom gates dated
1963, when £t was BWB policy to substitute these fon |
wooden gates needing neplacement. Luckily the policy

has changed and Bradley workshops are 8L manufacturing |
wooden gates (there was a wonks plate dated 1982 at Lock §)
There &8 an atiractive group of canal buildings at the ‘
top Lock and access to Walsall Road. 14 on oot it 4is
advisable o cross oven to the Legt-hand towpath as

this 48 easiern Lo walk fon the next mile on two.

The BWB advertisement board here has BCN in Zhe

singularn although the title was changed to the plural by
the Company in 1794,

The canal now enters a deep cutting with Freeth
Bridge crossing high above. There was a John Freeth
who wrote an ode forn the opening of the BCN Lin 1769,
but it 48 mone Likely that this bridge and Frecth
Bridge on the Anglesey Branch (see WET4) were both
named agter the John Freeth who wonked forn the BCN
gor overn 50 yearns and retined from the position of
clerk (chief executive) 4n 1842, There 45 another
bridge on the Wynkey and Essington known as Freeths
Bridge (see WETT) but here the derivation 48 uncertain
as it 48 unlikely that it was built in the same period
as the other two brnidges (in the 1840s). Agfter emergng
grnom the cutting the Tame Valley crosses a Long
embankment and two impressive aqueducts, with views
acnoss Handswonth to the GPO fLowen in central
Biundngham, The Piercy aqueduct has a segmented inon
through suppornted on cast-irwon beams with side arches
gorn the towpaths. The spouthouse Lane aqueduct is a
completely diffenent design with a single stome arch
ingilled gon some distance down with ornamental
brickwork, The nawrtows at the end of the embankment
are a sageguarnd Ln case of a breach in the canal, as
stop planks can be inserted each side of the island
to stem the §Low of waten.
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Hams tead Collierny basin, now built over, was a
gew yarnds furthen along the canal. The presence of a
collieny here 44 not an indication that the canal has
passed onto the productive Middle Coal Measures but
nathern that they are now at a reasonable depth below
more necent rocks. Since Salford Junction the boater
and walker have trhavelled back through approximately
100 million yeans of geological Lime Ln tenwms of Lthe
rocks they have crossed, They began on the Triassdic
sandstone, Laid down about 200 million years ago,
passed across progressively oldern nocks while
ascending Pery Ban Locks and are on carbondferous
Upper Coal Measunes about 300 million yearns old by
the basin. Hamstead Colliery hreached the "Thick"
coal seam at a depth of 2000 feet in 1880, and Lt
was one of the Last mines on the BCN fo close. In
1908 there was a disastrous §ire at the pit in which
24 miners and a rescuenr died.

A deep wooded cutting follows with fwo more very
high bridges: Chimney Bridge and the modern Scott
Bridge. A view grom above can be obfained f§rom Scott
Bridge which 44 easily accessible grom the towpath,
The canal emerges grom the cutiing and passes housing
estates begore neaching another motorway junction:
the M5/Mé intenchange. Turn night at Newton (Rushatt)
Junction for the Rushall Canal on continue along the
embankment fowards the Walsall Canal. There are
several mone aqueducts, the fiwt 48 a single arch
over the River Tame, the second a modern conchete
through over the M5, The Latter 48 protected by a pair
0f narrows with gates that are designed to close
automatically with the hush of water in the event of
a breach, Bustlehofme M{LL stood beside the River
Tame for about 400 yearns until & was demolished in
1971, At one time it was used as a sLitting mill to
produce Aon nods forn nailerns. Two fwether aqueducts
take the canal over the Grand Junction Railway and
the 08d Walsall Road o a thirnd cutting, Less
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attractive than the previous fwo but sLLL impressive.
The huge Bustleholme sand pits are now used for waste
disposal.,

Beyond Crnankhall Lane Bridge the Manorn House
46 on the Legt. This building dates grom the
thirnteenth century and 45 probably the ginest example
0of a medieval timber-gramed hall «in existence. 1%
was purchased by the Local Authornity in the 19508 for
demolition but examination of the strwuctuwre revealed
what was hidden undern ofd brickwork. 1% has now been
restoned and opened as a Licensed restaurant.

As the canal crosses anothen embankment and
Hateley Heath Aqueduct the town of Wednesbury 4is on
the night. This unfortunately achieved notorniety as
the scene of violent anti-Wesleyian niots in the 17404,
The wonst of these was in 1743 when John Wesley was
almost pushed down a coal mine by an Lncensed moh.
Holloway Bank was formerly much steeper and passengens
on the Holyhead %o London coaches had to dismount
and walk while extra honses hauled the coach to the
top. In wintern HiLL Top was said Lo be the coldest
place on the journey.
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The canal here 4is on the Middle Coal Measures
and has become much more industrial, When built it
cut across the end of the Danks Branch (see WZ)
fust beyond the nailway bridge and toll istand but
Little nemains of this junction. As the waterway
approaches Ocken HALL the cooling towerns of the
disused power station come into view, Until they
wenre moved Lo Bradley 4in the 19508 Zhe main BCN
wonkshops were on the Wikl behind the power station,
at the other end of the Ocker HiLL Branch grom the.
0£d Main Line. These workshops, in addition to
undestaking routine maintenance work, also produced
some very unusual canal cragt. In the 18905 they
built a " gan boat" forn draining shornt sections of
canal without a sfulce. Stop planks wenre inserted
at each end of the section, the gan boat was sunk
near one end, and a scoop-wheel Lin the stern Lifted
watern over the stop planks. The wheel was driven
by shagts from a steam engine and boiler mounted
on another boat -~ the "engine boat" - which nremained
Ain the adjoinding section of canal sELL in water.

Less successful were boats gitted with two
nhailway Locomotive boilers and a pump. One boilen
produced steam fo drive the pump which circulated
water through the other boilen, whene Lt was heated
begone being netuwned to the canal., This ingenious
system was developed Lin the severe winter of 1895-6
when thaffic on the BCN was halted by ice. Unfortunately
the boats wenre unable to cope with the conditions and
the expen ment was abandoned. In 1906 the workshops
built a petrnol engine to neplace the steam engine An
the BCN inspection Launch "Selene". This Launch
nemained active until the 19308 by which time motor
vehicles with thein advantages of speed and convenience
had taken over its nole.

A §inal aqueduct over the River Tame takes the
canal to Doe Bank Junction. Turn Left for Ryders Green '
and the Main Line orn night for Walsall.,
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THE DUDLEY CANAL

Dudley Canal No.l Line

The orniginal proposal fon the Stournbridge and
Dudley No.1 was for a single canal grom Stowtton to
Dudley. However the BCN successfully opposed this
BALL and Awo separate schemes following the same route
were then put forwand. These were approved even though
the Biouningham company continued £o object, Noit
sunprisingly the twoe canals shared several of thein
proprietons and worked closely together, The swwveyon
and engineen of the Dudley was Thomas Dadford, his son,
also Thomas, held the same posts on the Stouwrbridge.
Both canals were opened in 1779; although the Dudley
was completed §inst it cannot have cawiied much trhafgic
until the Stounbridge was ginished a few months Latenr.
The Latter was forn many years a prosperous canal,
paying high dividends and retaining its independence
until nationalisation in 1948, In contrast the Dudley
had incurnred very high capital costs building extensions
which included two Long tunnels, and also had continual
and expensive problems with mining subsidence. No
dividend was paid until 1804 and several planned branch
canals were noit completed. When the BCN, anmed with an
agreement grom the London and Biumingham Railway fo pay
a guaranteed dividend, opened negotiations in 1845
the Dudley itself suggested a menger, and this was
approved the following year.

Approaching along the Stowrbridge Canal the only
indication that there is a function with the Dudley
at Black Delph 45 a gap in the cast-iron rubbing band
protecting the ftowpath bank and, just past the gap,
the initials "BCN" cast in its uppern surgace. Black
Delph derives Lits name grom the extlensive coal,
firne-clay and {ronstone workings in the area.

The eight Delph Locks are all dated 1858, the
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yearn in which the entine §Light was nebuillt because
04 the efgects of subsidence. The present top and
bottom Locks occupy the same sites as the. ondginals
but the other six neplaced seven earkiern Locks Zo
the night of the present glight (hence Nine Locks
Bridge). Five of the s4ix have "waterfall" bypass
overglow weins, most spectacular after heavy rain

when water 44 cascading over them. The WMCC has been
excavating the ingilled Line of the old Locks, which

had huge side pounds extending across and beyond the ‘
1858 Line. 1§ inspecting their work note also the
Lamp posts in the garden of BCN house No.152. |

Many of the bricks along the edge of the towpath
and at the Locks carvy the imprint of their manugacturenr.
Some of these ane iLlustrated on the map and an
internesting diversion would be to keep a necond of the
diggerent designs, particularly gon those who wish to
ny theirn hand at making brick nubbings. There are
many more fo be seen throughout the BCN system and a
complete List would give a gairky comprehensive
noll-call of Black Country brickwonks.

Anothen feature of these Locks 48 the way 4in ‘
which the number of steps on the offside at the tail
of each Lock increases towards the bottom of the
geight. Lock 2 above the nrenovated stable block has ‘
nones Lock 3 has one step; Lock 4 has several but
they cannot be used because of the gap at the top.
The nest of the Locks have thein {ull complement.
These disappearing steps are a graphic LLLustration
0f the effects of subsidence caused by the worlkings
of the Wallows collierny at the top of the §Light.
The tower bLocks on the Left of the Locks are on
gimen ground as previous Landowners had the foresdight
to purchase the mineral nights grom the Eark o4 Dudley,
thus enswriing that the area was not undermined.

Wallows Collierny Pit No.29 (Nine Locks Pit)
was the scene of a nemarkable nescue in 1869 when the
mine §Looded and Zen men and three boys were trapped
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underground, One man died but the nest managed o
swwdve forn the six days £t Look nescuerns to heach
them, They had quenched theirn thinst dwiing thein
ordeal by sinaining gloodwater through their
handkerchiefs.

The shops and amendiiies of Brierley HALL arne only
a few yards to the Left at Nine Locks Bridge. Somewhat
furthen along ML Stneet 4in the opposite direction, on
the night at the top of Velph Road, 44 perhaps the
Black Country's most gamous public house: 'The Vine'
on, as Lt 48 popularly known, 'The Bull and Bladdenr'.
This 48 the home of Batham's brewery, well known Lo
connoisseuwrns of real ale and woth a pilgramage Lif your
taul)w Lie in this dirnection (and there 45 a children's
hoom) .

Nine Locks Bridge 44 a modern sthucture but care
448 needed when worlking the Lock as the headroom over
the bottom gate is nestrnicted, The Lowpath under the
bridge has some attractive brick horse trneads. The
basin at the Shropshire Union Railway and Canal Co.
(Latern L.M.S.) Nine Locks wharg has been §illed in and
the brnidge-hole blocked with unsightly angle iron and
plastic. However the stables and an unusual wooden
waehouse sELL Aurvive.,

Aftern passing through an area whenre formern
collienies have become overgrown with grass and scrub
the canal neaches Round Oak SteelWonks, Just before
the wonks boundarny 45 an ovenglow weir that probably
dates grnom the time of the construction of the canal,
Sucn an oniginal strwetwe 45 unuwsual on the Dudley
Canal as most were nebuilt on neplaced in an extensive
programme of Amprovements cavnied out by the BCN Ln
1856-58, and in the 18904,

The vast Round Oak complex ceased production Lasi
yearn aftern a historny of <nwon and steel making on the
site going back almost 200 years., This stretch of canal
45 now one of the quietest on the BCN, There 44 a
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surpnising amount of vegetation on the banks,
particularly at the far end of the Works, and one could
almost be on a ruwnal waterway rather than in an area o4
heavy industry.

The §inst nailway bridge once caried the Saltwells
and Cradley Line of the Pensnett Railway over the canal
to the head of the Tipsygornd incline. This railway
began in 1829 when the 4th Lord Dudley opened a £ine f§rom
Shut End nearn Kingswingornd o Ashwood basin on the Staggs
and Wones Canal. This was an early example of railway
competition as Lt bypassed the Stourbridge Canal and
avoided the payment of tolls. The Locomotive wsed was
the "Agenonia", built by Fosten, Rastrnick & Co. of
Stounbridge and now Lin the Railway Museun at York. The
g8t Locomotive o nun on hails in America, the
"Stounbridge Lion", was also manugfactured by this f§iuom,
Within a few yeans of the opening of the Shut End Line
the system had been expanded Zo serve the whole of the
Dudley esitates and extended grom Ashwood as far as
Cradley Heath. Except fon some of the £ines within the
Steel Wonks Little now nemains-of the Pensnett Raifway.

Level Strneet takes its name from the mining texm,
and the basin just beyond the bridge was the intake for
cooling waten for the Works, The Dudfey 4is very obviously
a contowr canal here as it winds pasit the gfurnaces and
nolling mikls, When the canal was built the main sowrce
0f water was a reservoin at Woodside and the feeden
entered the canal on the Left a hundred yards on Ao
befone Woodside Bridge. On neaching this bridge there
is a gine view of St. Andrew's Church on the swummit of
the gonse~covered Netherton HALL,

A section of the Pensnett (Lord Warnd's) Canal that
As AL in watern can be neached by a shont walk along
Pedmone Road. This 12 mile canal was built in 1840 by
Lond Dudley (Ward was the family name) and ran from
above Parkhead Locks to a wharnf and s4iding near the
Watllows engine shed on the Pensnett Railway. The branch
served several iron works and was in use intil 1950,
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The Two Lock Line was built in 1858 as a shont cut
to the Dudley No.2 canal and saved about a mile on the
jowwney round through Blowers Green. Unfortunately the
gamous "10 yard" orn "Thick" coal seam owteropped nearby
and subsdidence due to mining was a constant probfem.
There was a spectacularn collapse of the canal into old
wonrkings 4in 1894 and the BCN {inally gave up the sinuggle
and closed the Line in 1909. Peantree Lane was diverted
when Zhe Two Lock Line was built and no Longer crosses
the Dudley Canal, although the next bridge s1ilL bears
A8 name.,

The initials on the cast irnon beam of the furnoven
bridge nefern to the Nonth Buitish Inon Co., which in
spite of 4£&8 name operated several Local furnaces. The
canal oniginally terminated in a fLeld (0x Leasow) on
the night just past this bridge, but tons of spoil have
been dwnped on the site and there 48 now no trace of
the terminal basins.

In 1785 the Dudley Company began to extend the No.l

Line up g4ve Locks and thrwough a 13 mile tunnel to connect |

with Lond Dudley's Limestone workings on the othen side
of Castle HLLE. These were already Linked by canal to

the BCN at Tipton and thus the Dudley Extension would open |

up a through houte. There were consdiderable problems with
the new canal. John Pinkerton, whose work forn the BCN on
the Watlsall Canal had Legt something to be desired, was
the contracton forn the tunnel. Progress was sfow and
Pinkerton's performance unsaiisgactony. Eventually in
1789 Josiah CLowes, who had built Sapperton tunnel on the
Thames and Severn Canal, was appointed engineer and zthe
work was finally completed in 1792,

Clowes atlso constructed a neservoin at Gads Green,
near Windmill End, 1o supply water to ithe new Locks and
maintain the tunnel Level 6" above the BCN at the sitop-
Lock at Tipton. Aftern the 1846 mengen there was no Longer
any need to protect the BCN water in this way and the
geeder grom the neservoin fo Parkhead seems to have been
abandoned. There 44 certainfy no obv.ious sign of Lt now.
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Locks 4 and 5 at Parkhead both sugfered grom the
efgects of subsidence and in 1894 No.5 was removed and
No.4 nebuilt with a gall of about 12 feet, thus making
Lt the deepest Lock on the BCN. Until the 1930's the
building by the Lock housed a recirnculating pump that
netunned watern grom the 441" Level Lo the 453!
Biumingham Level., An unuwsual geaturne of the junction
above this Lock 48 that there is no turnover bridge to
the towpath of the Vudley No.2 Line. When this canal
was constructed Lt was no doubt easien and cheaper o
phoddide a towpath along the night bank of the Dudley
No.1 gnom the turnover bridge some distance below the
Lock., This path has disappeared and access L& now
obtained by crossing the Lock gates on by walking along
Peartree Lane 1o Blowers Green Bridge, wherne £t 44
possible Lo swumount the fence and join the Lowpath,
Alternatively one can bypass the function completely by
gollowing a fooipath across the waste ground between
the turnoven bridge and Blowers Green Bridge (see
maps D3 and D5).

The three othen Locks are above the junction and
arne wekl wonth a visit, although the boitom gates of
No.3 are padlocked and the 3154 yard Dudley Zunnel 04
closed fon nepain. There are several interesting
geatunes here Lin an attractive setting. For example the
"BCN" posts by the top gates of fwo of the Locks, the
hailway viaduet with cracks and tie-barns indicative of
subsidence, and the pulley at the head of the fop Lock.
A hornse towing a boat out of the Lock could not exert
an effective pull on the Line as Lt would be heading
towards the twwnover bridge at the tail of the Lock on
the one over the Pensnett Canal, However Lf the ftowing
Line was passed nound the pulley the problem was solved.,
The odd structuwre on the other side of the Lock 48 a
neplica of a tunnel ventilation shagt and houses a
plaque commemorating the neopening of funnel and Locks
An 1973,

The Grazebrook Amm nan to Grazebrook's Netherton
Furnaces and was abandoned 4in 1953. There are plans Zo
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dredge and nestone 1o navigation the 200 yards on so
that sXLLE nemain. The famous Grazebrook blowing engine
was sited nean the Anum. This engine was erected in 1817
and was sELL at work providing the blast for bomb
castings during Wornld War 2 . The engine was dismaniled
in 1964 and has been ne-erected in the middle of
Dartmouth Cineus Ln Boumingham - handly the most
appropriate Localiy.

The Parkhead end of the Dudley tunnel was afgected
by subsidence and was rebuillt in 1884, hence the date on
the pontal. This "new" section,9} chains Long, gives a
very misleading {mpression of the tunnel duiensions as
At was budclt Larngen than the orniginal bore, There 4s no
towpath through the ftunnel.

The centre of Pudley, the zoo and the casile are
some distance away but may be neached by a walk of a
mile on s0 along Holly Hall Road (Ltwrin night into
Stounbridge Road). The 287 bus nuns everny half howr;
jounney time to Dudley about 7 minutes.

Dudley Canal No.2 Line
(Selly Oak Extension)

This canal nan to Selly Oak Junction on the Wonrcester

and Biuningham Canal and was intended fo provide a route
to the south which bypabéed the BCN, thus avodiding the
high tofls Levied by that company on trafgic via Tipion
Junction. ALt the same time it served the industriakl area
fo the west of the Line of hills betfween Dudley, Rowley
Regis and Blackheath. CLowes was the engineenr, although
he died befone the Dudley No.2 was §inally completed

in 1798.

From Blower's Green Junction the canal skints
Netherton HiLL and forn a while runs parallel with the
No.l Line on the other side of the Black Brook vatllfey.
The collierny waste on the Wikl is now covered with
vegetation, there are fields and woods Lin the valley,
and the only blot on the Landscape s the opencast
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mining which began in 1983, The nauviows fust before

the electrnicity thansmission Line are fon the insertion
of siop planks 4if the embankment (s damaged by subsidence.
The conresponding set at the far end are spanned by a
modern bridge with beams by Doxman Long.

Thomas Brewin was superintendent of the Dudley from
1812 until 1846, His Zunnel was built in 183§ as part
of a new Length of canal that cut off a Loop of the old
Line. AL the same Time Lodge Fanm storage nreservoir was
constweted over parnt of the Loop, but basins were Legt
at each end. A tramway §rom Doulton's CLay Pit nan to
one basin, the othen became part of the Company's
maintenance yard, Brewin's funnel was opened out 4in
1858 and High on Sounding Bridge (because of the echo)
built over the cutting. There «s an elegant Victornian
pavilion in the cnicket ghound to the Legt of the bridge.

The nocks exposed 4in the cutiing are of Linterest
to geologists as they are the Downtonian sandstones and
shatles gorming the core of Netherton HilL and underfying
the Coal Measunes in this area. There 45 also a small
igneous intwusion. In the garnden of BCN house No.159
are the sfuices and side pond forn adjusting watern Levels
between the neserwoin and the canal. In times of drought
the storned waten was netwined to the canal by a pump in
the maintenance yard. The yard has been Levelled and is
now a carn park; the neservoin is used for water sponts.
A walk along the §oot-path past the imnense Doulfons's
Clay PLit to the Saliwells Naturne Reserve 448 an
interesting and pleasant diversion. Saliwells takes Lis
name. gnom some Aaline sprnings where as early as ithe
16308 Lond Dudley unsuccessfully "attempted to make salt".
However the waterns were gound Lo have a beneficial effect,
particulantly gorn skin diseases, and Saliwells was
popular in the Last century as a spa.

The canal napidfy becomes mone wiban and indusinial
as it approaches Netherton. Just before Primrose Bridge
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i a Shropshine Union basin sEL in water, with a
warehouse and siables carnying an LMS advertisement.
Opposite 45 Primrnose HLL Basin, part of an uncompleted
Amprovement to cut o4 the Loop round the hill,
Nethernton was gamous gon the manugacture of anchons
and chains, and these wenre fested before dispatch Lin
special proving on testing houses. There 44 one on
the whang here, with a Large anchorn sianding outside,
and there was anothern at Cradley a mile on s0 Lo the
south, With views achoss Zo the CLent HiLELs on the
night these buildings, basins and bridges make an
attractive canal scene.

The centne of Netherton 4s a few hundred yards
grom Primrose Bridge on grom Bishtons Bridge. "The
0&d Swan" in Halesowen Roas 44 also known as "Mns.
Pardoe's" and <8 highly regarded by those whe "waa'nt
a dhap of comforting wainter, whom-brewed". Between
the two bridges 48 Noah Hingley's Netherton Irnon Wonrks,
now partly demolished, where the anchor for the "Titanic"
was made, In the Last centurny William Bishton nan a
packet pleasure boat every Sunday from his wharg at
Bishtons Bridge to the 0£d Wharg in Biumingham, AL Fox
and Goose Bridge near Bumblehofe a Baplisit ministen
waited gon the boat and subjected the passing sinness
to a §ine and brimstone sermon gon breaking the Sabbath.

Withymoon interchange basin s a shadow of LL4
gormer self as the transhipment shed, cranes and railway
Lines have all been removed since Lt ceased operations
in the early 1960's. Grifpin Bridge £s named afien
Grifgins Spade Wonks, which in the early 1800's issued
L5 own coinage: "one pound gor 240 Token Payable Jas.
Grifgins". Just past this bridge there is an attractive
building on the Left that was an {ronmastern's office.
On the night 44 one of the oldest §inums in Netherton,
Samuel Lewis and Co.lid., who starnted as nailmakerns
but now manufacture forngings and pressings. Their
"Sammy" hand winches have been wsed by many boaterns.
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Nailmaking was a prominent Netherton indusiny
and Darnby End 45 where cottages were built fon
honse-nail makens who had come grom Derbyshire. The
Withymoon Aum senved the collierny of the same name,
where {n 1864 the winding chain (rattle chain) snapped
and the cage fell to the bottom of the shaft, killing
edLght men, The nail bordening the Canal Side towpath
has the bolt heads countersunk inte Lt s0 that they
cannot snag towing Lines.

The Bumblehofe Loop was bypassed by a new Length
of canal, with min Lowpaths and atinactive "Toll End"
bridges, when Netherton Tunnel was opened in 1858. Two
axms, Bumblehole (apparently so named because of the
sound made by an eanly steam hammer) and Boshbodil,
arne all that nemain of the Loop. The Bumbfehole Boating
Centre 48 wornth a visit, although the headroom at Dunn's
Bridge 48 nestnicted (6'3" on s0). The magnificent old
crane 45 4in need of some renovation and there 44 a
collection of boat registration plates. The windmill
and toll house are imaginative stmuctures added in
necent years. "The Boat Inn" in St.Petens Road has
some g4ine etched glass windows.

Bufferies Basin was yet another uncompleted branch.
0niginally planned to nun fo Baptist End, only a shont
section was built beforne the scheme was abandoned and
a tuamway constructed Lnstead. The Baptists who Lived
in this anea wenre fon some years baptised in a "wanm
hole" where hot water from a furnace entered the canal.,
The whole area between the Bumblehole Axm and Warviens
Hall Park beyond the Netherton Tunnel Branch has been
Landscaped, and Cobb's Engine House netained as a
neminder of the many engines that once drained Local
manes.

A feedern from Gads Green neservoir entenred the canal
at the end of the Boshboif Aum and a section 48 sELL 4in
watern, The neservoir, above and to the Left of the
tunnel. was abandoned towands the end of the Last cenlwry
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and the feeder now carvries surface water via a s4phon
undern the nailway embankment. AL windnill End Junction
continue strhaight ahead fon Netherton Tunnel on tun
night undern the two bridges forn the nest of the No.?2
Line, which s navigable gon anothen three miles. 1L is
no Longen a through route but a visit to Coombeswood
and Hawne Basin 44 a wornthwhile detowr., The canal skinits
Warnens Hall Park and passes two colliery basins begone
neaching Hailstone Quarry basin, where "Rowley Rag"

was Loaded for many yearns. This {8 an extremely hard
Lgneous nock intruded into the Etnwuia Mark and there
are Lange outcrops in the Rowley Hills, 1t was broken
up into chips and sent by canal for use as road stone.

Doulton's Biumdngham Potiterny, which manugactured
sinks and sanitany ware, <8 a few yards gurther along
the canal, Many of the buildings silL stand and form
part o4 a trading estate., After Rowleystop there are
housing estates on the Left and indusiry on the rnight
as far as Powke Lane Bridge. This <5 a modern bridge
weth an wnusual nidged surgace to the concrete pilens,
which may not be in keeping with the canal env.ironment
but 48 cerntainly efgective against graffitl antisits.
Aften the next bridge the canal becomes more Lindustrial
but therne 45 a neclaimed and Landscaped area aroung
Totnal Bridge. A footpath climbs the hill grom here fo
Powke Lane where "The 0Ld Bush Revived" 48 a populan
meeting place for canal societies, particularly the
Coombeswood Canal Trust. Take care iff using the gootpath
in the dank as it 45 ovenghrown in places and very wet
where Lt crosses the sineam,

Ajten Smiths Bruidge the towpath joins Station Road
to cross the bridge over the ingilled cofliery aum and
road vehicles can be a hazarnd. There 44 no towpath
through Gosty (on Gonsty) HLE Tunnel and no passing
places fon boats. However as one can see through the
tunnel fo the othen end At 48 easy Lo check whethen
anothen boat 48 approaching. ALthough the tunnel was
extensively nebuilt Lin 1881 the roof height 4is variable;
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there 48 a Low section just inside the entrance and
also at the gan end. The ain shagt comes Lo the surface
in the §ront ganden of a house Lin Station Road.

Forn many yearns boats were "Legged" through the
Lunnel but 4in 1913 the BCN introduced a moton tug, with
a Bolindern engine butning paraggin and a propellon ai
each end 50 that turning was unnecessany., As motor boats
became common there was Less need gon the fug and Lt was
s0ld 4in the 1930's. The ftug house 44 4in poor condition
but it 4is the only one on the BCN and should be nrestored.
Could 4t once again be used as a boat house?

The Zunnel emenrges into Coombswood Tube Works, where
naviow boats werne sILEL thansporting tubes around the
complex 4in the mid-1970's. On the right of the tunnel
enthance &4 a pile of BCN sitop planks. Similarn planks
wenre once Lo be seen on stop plank racks allf over the
system, but they proved {uesistible Lo vandals and
wesre nemoved, fo be brought out of storne as required.
There 45 no access to the towpath {rnom Gorsty HiLL Road
as the gate 4is kept Locked. The only way one can walk
this strneteh of canal (s to make a detour of over a mile
along Coombes Road to Herewarnd Rise and approach §rom
the opposite dirnection.

Beyond the Tube Works is Hawne Basin, an interchange
basin that was used forn the transhipment of fubes until
the nailway closed Ln 1967, 1% has now been nestonred by
the Coombeswood Canal Trusit for use as moornings and
visitons arne weleome. Buwrton Bridge, named agtern Chiis
Burton 4in 1982 agter he had nebuillt £t from a ruinous
condition, has some very unusual Ln,te/u:oclung Ainon
plates protecting the brickwork of the parapets. The
Limit of navdigation of the No.2? Line 45 now fust past
the Basin, where a bridge has collapsed into the canal,
but orniginally it continued forn anothern give miles Lo
Selly Oak Junction on the Worcesten and Biumingham canal.,
Over two miles of this Length was in the 3795 yard
Lappal Tunnel, which was closed in 1917 aften constant
probLems with subsdidence.
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THE WALSALL CANAL
(including the Walsall Branch Canal)

0§ all The Biumingham canals the Walsall has
retatned mone off Lts oniginal character than most.
For much of <ts 7} mile Length the canal s bordered
by goundrnies, factories, interchange basins and
denelict Land; many of these appearing much as they
did when it was a working waterway. At present, with
the exencise of a Little .imagination, the sensation
of stepping back into the past {s very nreal, and 44
the main atirnaction of a visit o the canal, As
denelict Land is neclaimed and industrdial sites
nedevloped this will almost inevitably change.,
However some of the atmosphere could be preserved L
two nathen atypical planning policies wene adopted.
The ginst would be to sdite new industrial units close
{o the canal, 40 as 1o maintain the sense of enclosure
4n a wornkd nemote fgrom subwiban housing estates and
commuter trafgic. The second would be to allow as much
natunal colonisation of waste Land as possible, nather
than gollowing the "public park" approach. 1ts present
environment sults the Walsall canal and has continuity
with 4ts Andustrial past. 14 will never possess the
charms of a rnwnal canal and & could easily become an
Lndeterninate and unattractive subwiban waterway.

Immediately aftern Ryders Green Junction eight
Locks take the Walsall Canal down into the Tame Valley
to the Walsall Level of 408'. The appropriately
named pub 45 recommended. Fommaldehyde s manugactured
at the Synthite wonks adjoining Lock 2. This chemical
has a charactenisitic smell and 45 used in the plastic
Andustrny, In sofution (formalin) it can also be used
gon preserving biological specimens, including human
bodies fon medical students. To stand by the wonrks in
the nain with the smell of gomaldehyde in the ain can
produce an uncomfortable feeling of being pickled alive.
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The Rydens Green focks have been swurounded by
Andusiny gon many yearns and there were wharves and
basins in mosi of the pounds. A decrepit wharg
nemains between Lock 5 and 6 (note also the sieps at
the tail of Lock 5) and the basin in the next pound
A8 unusual in being gafed. The chains and pulleys
0f the Ligting gear are s4LL in place, although
obviously not used forn many years. The Muntz works
are named after G.F.Muntz, who in 1832 patented a
yellow alloy of copper and zine used for sheathing
the bottoms of Limber ships. Muntz's Metal Co. also
had a Large works in Smethwick,

Until 4t was neplaced necently the baidge below
Lock 7 was notorndious as the Lowest on the BCN, with
sinengthening ginderns neducing the headroom fo 5'9",
The centre of Great Bridge, where the shops are
adequate gox most needs, s only a shont distance
gnom here on from the next brdidge.

The bottom Lock 4is some distance f§rom the rest of
the light and with a §all of only 3 feet on 40, half
that of the otherns, At 48 the shallowest Lock on the
BCN, This 44 an 4indication that this section of the
Walsall was constrweted at an eawly date. A Laten
canal would have descended into the valley with evenly
spaced Locks of unigorm fall. Such an arrangement 44
Less wasteful of water but {nvolves the excavation
04 the necessarny cuttings and embankments, something

e earky engdneens avodided wherever possible.

This length of the Walsall, the 2% mile Broadwaters
Extension, was the beginning of the expansion of the
BCN system aftfern the complefion of Brindley's oniginal
canal., 1t was intended to serve the collienies on the
othern side of the valley grom the Wednesbury 0£d Canal,
and was part of the BCN's successful campaign to defeat
the nival Fazeley scheme (see BFI). Robert Whitwonith
swweyed the noute in 1782, John Smeaton was the
engineerc and John Pinkerton the contractor. The canal

w1



GREAT

PIPEWORK
EnGINEERING BRIDCE
(PEDILTD ALL
SERVICES
‘I'c'nu',mv BACKHOUSE
L LANE BRIDGE ]
s /\ BRICKHOUSE LANE
e ) SV
v PH S £ :"" ¥
> 4
7w . &
-~ N |1 &L
RYDERS b S PP W 1o -¢-,¢/—+—/+—¢—4—-+—-+-;—.:
GREEN .:7/"-—/— DUNEY — —1- - |-
LOCKS /7 v
4 2 /
(8 RISELS") %
, /
4 /
v
LoB' /
LEVEL /
”
BMCKHOUSE K R1DCE
( Pir) GREAT BRIDGE : ———— - ""g “:‘_‘“
RMLWAY [ ] SR U | L e TermmAL -1 3
RASINS . <
~
=
<
NOTiCE = i
Mo ENGISE To MRsS w
THIS forRp WTO > 4
RUSsM SIS /
(Braex ‘ J, y
WoRKs)
P i
i i E I |
/A Le.
rﬂ ,énr,v.s CRoSSIG \ ® EAGLE LANE
= V(@ -
RATCLIFF'S (ROLLED METALS)
No. 1 WorkS [
L PH
GREAT BRIGE \Roe) 2
SR i A, { R
MEATH An) "
= TPToN
-
a al \® (ercte cowrery) s a i
ToLL END 3
RECLAMATION MOORS MILL LANE
L~/ 8
WORKS FO0RS MILL LANE BRIGE mer [
~
oy z
@  BEEVER RofD -
®
s — | =
(ToLL END TIPTON GREEN AWD|ToOLL END |
TJuncTioN) — _ _ CoMMunicaTioN
Wl ’ 5= = e 1

¥riec)




seems {o have been open by Late 1785 but poon
workmanship by Pinkerton was not nectigied until early
1786, The extension o WalsfLL came Later, in 1799,
and §inally the Walsall Locks Branch was construeted
in 1841 2o connect the Wynley and Essington and the
BCN aften thein merngern in 1840. A feature of Smeaton's
work {5 that he used single boitom gates forn his Locks,
a practice continued by the BCN until the Bentley
Canal was built in 1843, Preswnably cost was the
determining gacton as single gates were cheaper than
the mithed gates wsed by Brindley.

Below the bottom Lock the next 1§ miles of the
Walsall were once a maze of branches and awms, Most
were comstructed to serve colliernies and indicate how
heavy the trhaffic cavied by the Broadwaterns Extension
must have been as zthe coalfield developed. Little
remains now of the Haines Branch, which eventually
extended almost o the New Main Line at Dudley Port
Junetion, and closed in 1969. However Great Bridge
nailway interchange basins are sl in water, although
shallow, The stumps protruding rom the water Ln the
furnthest basin are the bases of the pillarns that
supponted one side of the transhipment shed, In the
1960's some of the s{idings off the main Line here were
wsed Lo stone steam Locomotives awailing the torch at
Cashmone's scrapyand.

Hempole Lane Bridge s a turnover bridge canrying
the towpath across to the Danks Branch, which although
stanked off (s sLLL in water for some distance. Danks
was a Local mineowner and the branch nan to Golds HiZE
Collierny, with an awun to Brickhouse Pit. There 44
ALUL an attractive wooden towpath nail under the
nailway bridge.

The Tofl End Reclamation Works ("reclamation" &eems
o be a modern euphemism fon "sewage") goflow on the
night and the next substantial branch - the Tipion
Green and TolL End Communication - 44 marked by a cwrwe
0f pipe standing in a gield on the towpath side. This
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branch began as a colliery awm but by 1809 it had

been connected to the 0£d Main Line at Tipton Green,
thus providing an alternaiive route from the Walsall
Level and easing the pressure on Ryders Green and

Spon Lane focks. John Rennie, whose engineering
achievements included the Kennet and Avon and

Lancastern Canals, whene he built some notable aqueducts,
produced plans fon the Communication Canal, but these
wene not accepted, There were eleven (Later reduced to
ten) Locks up to the present summit Level and when the
New Main Line was built it nan through the pound between
Locks 3 and 4 (Watery Lane Junction - see map ML13),
The Length between the 0£d and the New Main Lines was
abandoned in 1960 but the Lower section survived until
1967.

The Ocker HALE Tunnel Branch was opened in 1785
to feed water grom the Walsall Level to the Ocker HiLE
punping engines, via a tunnel into the side of the hifl.
These engines were at the end of the Ocker HiLE Branch
gnom the Wednesbury Oak Loop of the 0£d Main Line, and
they naised watern 65 feet up shafts from the tunnel to
neplenish the 473 foot Level, There wenre three engines
wonking by 1803 and the number was eventually increased
Lo s4ix, The cwuvient created by the pumping was 40 great
that 4in 1815 "when the Cut s crowded with Boats they
cannot be haled out". Aften the Ockern Hi{LL Branch was,
abandoned {in the 1950's the tunnel was blocked but the
Lower canal was netained fo provide cooling watern for
the adjoining powern station. This has necently closed
and there must now be some concern for the future of
the Branch, 1t would be negrettable if 4t became a
Linear ip, as when navigable such branches add
character and intenesit to the BCN, and this one would
onky appear to requinre dredging.

Turn night at Doe Bank Junction forn the Tame
Valley Canal. The directions on the two cast-inon
bridges here are misleading. Obviously s0 Lf you
have necently Left Biumingham and come down Ryders
Green Locks, but if you are approaching the Junction
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from Walsall the most direct noute fo Binmingham 4is
stnaight ahead and not to the Legt.

The Walsall Canal continues under the powen
station coal conveyorns and the bridge carrying the
LNWR Princes End branch, This was an early example
0f an uneconomic branch £ine and Lost iils passenger
service in 1916, There ane iwo small housing estates
before Wiggins HLLE Turnover bridge and then another
aun on the night: the Gospel 0ak Branch. The original
plans gon this branch included Locks but these were
never buwilt, 1t was decided instead to have three
Locks on the Bradley Branch and duplicates here, only
a gew hundred yands away, would have been supergluous.
The Gospel Oak was abandoned in 1954 but nemained in
waten, although choked with needs and completely
unnavigable, until most of 4t was necently gilled Lin.

On the opposite side of the canal 48 the suwrviving
basin of the GWR Wednesbury (Leabrook) nailway-canal
internchange yand. The other basin was Levelled before
the Last wan and the sidings are now used as a steel
teminal, The next bridge cavies what was once the
GWR main Line, now reduced to a shont greight-only
sectdon between Wednesbury and the Walsall Strneet siteel
teruminal Ln Wolverhampton. The pipes attached to Lhis
bridge canny oxygen from the Bruitish Oxygen plant, also
at Walsall Sineet, to the Patent Shaft Steelworks. The
Monway Aznm once ran through these works, with a Lift
bridge to carrny gactony trhaggic over the canal, but now
the only Lindication that this branch existed s the
nallway bridge at the entrance. Jusi pasit the bridge,
by the corner of the fence bordering tbe towpath, 48 a
GWR boundarny post.

The young birch wood on the Left of the canal 4is an
excellent example of the natural reclamation of derelict
Land, Fifteen yearns ago when the chemical wonrks was
demolished there were patches of gauishly colowred s04L
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amongst the heaps of nubble. The area appeared totally
unsuitable gon plant growth., Now L& s gast becoming an
atinactive woodland and the cost Lo the community has
been nil. Have the millions of pounds spent on Land
neclamation Lin the West Midlands (and elsewhere) all
been absolutely necessary?

The Bradley Branch 4s stilL navigable forn a few
hundred yands, although judging by the growth of reeds
very few boats make the attempt. This was another
collieny branch, initially built with three Locks but
extended in 1849 thrwugh s4ix more Zo foin the Wednesbury
Oak Loop. 1t thus provided another Link with the 473
goot Wolverhampton Level untif it was abandoned in 1961.

The Broadwaters anm, the oniginal terminus of the
1785 canal, has completfely disappeared, as there has
been extensive tipping in this area. Indeed BWB s£4LL
dump dredgings across the Lowpath here and the inevitable
spillage makes boots essential Lf on foot. The disused
mines and pools at Broadwaters were a major source of
water fon the BCN and between 1790 and 1813 the Company
had an engine pumping water into the Walsall Level,
grom which it was naised to the sumnit by the Ockern HLLE
engines. There was also a feeden carnying sunplus water
back grom the swnmmit Lo the pools for storage. After
1813 pumping continued but using an engine Linstalled
by Local mineownens who wished to reopen the mines.

The canal 4s now only } mile on s0 from the site of
John Wilkinson's ironwonks (see WOLZ2-3), Walk atong
Bull Lane past Moxley Hospital, iunn night into Great
Bridge Road and the "Fierny Holes" publfic house {ia a
neminden of the night-time spectacte 200 years ago, as
gunaces LLluminated the sky and Lights gLickered in
shallow coalpits. A plinth in the necreation ground
acnoss the noad grom the pub once cawiied a plaque
commemorating Wilkinson, but this has been nemoved by
vandals .

w5



W4

"April 3 1886
Barn farm Collary
Mr. Robinsan Sir Consuring
tha wight on your Boats
i am not to a wagin of
clay nor tow But sum
of your Boats lek very Bad
we dursent load them tow
hevy or we should have
them sunk
Yours trulay
William Bailey"




Holyhead Road Bridge carwiies what was once
the main London to Holyhead coach noute, improved
by Telfond in 1826, Between This bridge and Darfasion
Road Bridge there are two brick siructurnes, half
hidden by vegetation, at the side of the towpath.
These might be small kilns - any Lngorumation about
Zhem would be welcome. Boaterns requiring hope can
purchase £t at Moxtey nope works, although
ungortunately the ropewalk was demolished in the
1970's.

There are glacial deposits of sand and
boulder clay overlying the Middle Coal Measwres 4n
this area and MoxLey sand beds were a nid sowrce

o4 goundrny moulding sand. The site 48 now waste ground

and has been used fon tipping. The s4ide bridge
carvnying the towpath over the nearby basin is badly
holed. Wand's poitery at Baggoits Bridge specialised
in the manufacture of gLower pots, but production
ceased some yearns ago and ithe bottle ovens have been
demolished, Plant poils are sLULE s0ld but they are
the modenn "plasiic" varniely and are made elsewhere.

The Bilston and Willenhatl Branches had a
nelatively shont working Life, opened soon aftern the
canal was constueted but closed by 1904 when
Bradshaw's Canal Handbook was published. This is the
Least industnial parnt of the Walsall Canal, with
open ground around the Darlasion Brook on the Legit
and a public park on the night. Yet another BCN
pumping station was sited hene, supplying water §rom
Henberts Park collierny to the canal near Porketis
Bridge. A housing estate gollows on ithe Ltowpath
side and then indusiny once again encloses the canal
as At passes thrhough the Large Ruberny Owen and GKN
works

The initials in the device decorating Zhe
small building by Rough Hay Bridge nefer to the
Midlands ELectric Conponation fon Power Disiribuiion.
At the Lunn of the century this company, togethen
with the Blast Furnace Powern Syndicate, began Zo

iz
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supply the distrnict with electricity. The MEC also
built a genenating station, which {4 dated 1906, in
Church Stneet, } mile to the south-east in the centre
of Darbaston. In the same sineet 45 Sit.Joseph's
Catholic Chunch, one of the most unusual chuwrches 4in
the Midlands. T4s design 48 based on the recwuvrent
theme of the shape of a nut and Lt symbolizes the
Andustny gorn which Darkaston 4s famous: the manufacture
of nuts and bolts. Willenhall, the cenine of the Lock
and key trade, can be neached by walking } mile in
the opposite dirnection grom Rough Hay Bridge.

The Rubery Owen wonks, Like Patent Shaft, receives
oxygen by pipe from British Oxygen at Wolverhampion.
This pipe has been buried in the towpath from Baggoiits
Bridge but Lt now crosses the canal on the second of
the fwo factorny bridges. There are many miles of
electrnicity cables and gas mains under canal towpaths,
Aincluding this one, but an oxygen pipe L& more unusual,
Immediately after Bughole Bridge are the remains of
Darkaston nailway interchange basin, established by
the Grand Junction Railway and said to be the oldest
such basin on the BCN (the GIR became part of the
LNWR Lin 1846).

The canal now passes the site of what was until Lts
nemoval in Late 1983 the only operating bascule bridge
on the BCN, This was a modern electrically-powered
bridge controlled by push-buttons at the operating
stations. 14 carndied an internal factory road across
the canal, with the towpath taken high over the roadway
on an 4inelegant framework of gindens. Although a fLoss
to the BWON. the bridge has been purchased by the Wey
and Awn Canal Trust and hopefully will eventually
be ne-erected on that canal.

Darkaston has been severely aggected by the necent
necession, perhaps more s0 than othen parts of the
MidLands, but some heavy industrny has swwived, 14 44
worth Leaving the canal at Bentley Braidge and walking
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to the cornern of Willenhall Road, where it 4is
possible to Look into an inferno of heat and noise
at Garvington's Fonge. Bradley and Fostern's works
on the Legt of the canal is another typical Black
Countrny scene, with glowing furnaces and heaps of
spoil,

Aftern Fornstern's turnovern bridge a shont Length
of the Walsall, including the aqueduct over the Grand
Junetion Railway, has fwin towpaths, as does the
Anson Branch as far as the junction with the Bentley
Canal, The Anson,over 1% miles Long, was opened in
1830 to serve Reedswood collierny. In Latern yearns a
BCN pumping station was situated near the end of the
Branch. More necently, agier Binchill's powern station
was built, Lt gained a new Lease of Life for cooling
water., However the power station has now closed and
the Anson Branch 4is threatened with complete
abandonment. Theoretically the Limit of navigation 44
the M6 embankment, as although the canal north of the
motorway L5 Ain watern, the culvert will only pass an
undernsize boat. In practice the section north of
Bentley ML Bridge has accumwlated s0 much rubbish
that it is only a few inches deep, and there 4is
anothen shallow strheteh just past the entrance to the
Branch. Mone serndious 48 an underground §irne that BWB
suddenly discovered butning 4in the embankment nean the
fjunction with the Walsall. The Anson was closed and
then neopened agten protesis grom enthusiasts,
presumably indicating that the §irne was not considered
a majon prnoblem, However the Branch has necently
been closed again and {5 future must be in doubt.

The Bentley Canal was opened in 1843, aﬁte_/c the
1840 menger of the BCN and the Wyrley and Essington
Canal., 11 ascended through 10 Locks 4in jusit under

| mikes to join the W & E at Wednesfield. After the
abandonment of all but the six Locks at the far end
(see WEZ2) part of the Bentley was used as the houte

we
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of a §' x 5}' stomm-water sewer - a hole that the
nestoned canal could swrely have performed at a
praction of the cost.

The Walsall Canal continues achoss the river
valley on an embankment and the iwo arch James Bridge
aqueduct (although one arch 48 no Longern used as the
niven has been divernted through a culvert). The
young Rivern Tame has two main tributaries, both
confusingly known as the Tame. They meet a mile fo
the south-east of here, at Bescot, and the niver then
glows east and nonth to join the Trent. The Walsall
crwossed the mone southerly of the two rnibutaries at
Great Bridge: this s the other, The nawtows jfust
before the motorway 48 a sageguard against a breach
in the embankment, as stop planks can be inserted
An an emengency.

Aftern James Bridge Copper Works, where an ofgice
block has been built over the canal and there is an
internesting side bridge on the night, the industrial
swooundings give way Lo housing as the waterway enters
a cutting. Woodwards Bridge 48 most convenient gon
access to the nathern scattered shopping facilities at
PLeck, including the §ish and chip shop in Pleck Road.
Indusiny netwins agien Pagett's Bridge and nemains the
predominant featurne until Birnehills Junction. Canoedisis
seem to 4ind the canal towards Walsall Junction
attractive and boats should pass them with care.

In his "Buildings of England" Pevsnern desctibes
Walsall as "a mess", an opindion congimed by the state
0f Walsall Town Wharg. Howevern thern are featwrnes of
intenest amongst the dereliction. The brick wall on
the night at the junction has cinder (furnace s€ag)
panels in an atiractive design that has unfortunately
suggered grom some crude and unsympathetic repains.

On the Ledt a range of unwsual Victornian warehouses in
ned and blue brick swwwound the sdite of the basin. They

w9
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are ait present occupied by the Local Co-operative
Society but there have been suggestions that they
would be Ldeal forn a museum specialising in the historny
of the Leathen industry. Walsallf has been the centre
of this indusiny gon several hundred yearns and ther
are many works (marked with an asterisk on the map)
manugactuning saddlenly, bags and othern Leather goods,
including gootballs wsed in the Workd Cup Finals. At
Bloxudch, a short distance to the nornth-wes

saddlens' irnommongery and awl blades were made and this
ancillarny thade could also feature Ln such a museum.

Unless the axm has been dredged necently At 4is
almost Ampossible to proceed beyond the nawows, but
there 45 a convenient moorning fjusit before them. To
neach the town centre walk past the foundry and along
the back of the ofd coal yard, The building at the end
of the anm 48 an unusual combination of a warehouse
and a wharfinger's cottage. 1L 48 probably unique on
the BCN but has been allowed to fall into disrepain.
In spite of several nequests the Walsall Planning
Department have glatly negused the Walsall PLanning
Sageguand the building, as its netfention does not suit
the plans submitied for the site by developers!

The Wenfock Limestone that outcrops at Daw End
(4ce DE4) Lies unden a shallow covering of Coal Measures
An this area. Several shafts were sunk around the end
of the canal arm and on the other side of Wolverhampion
Stneet to nraise the stone, although exactly whenre the
workings wene, and thein size, is not known. There
were also extensive mines, with caverns and a Large
underground Lake, a short distance to the nonth-easit
around Littleton Sineet. Furnthern wonkings were
beneath Church HLL to the south-east and the site of
Walsall Anboretum was once a Large Limestone quariry.

w10
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The Walsall Branch Canal

This canal, also known as ithe Walsall Junction
Canal on the Watlsall Locks Branch, connects the Walsall
Canal with the Walsall Branch of the Wyrley and
Essington. Agter Wolverhampion Sineet dridge and the
Amposing ALbion FRouwr ML the canal reaches Lock 6
which sLLL has Tradilional, ratner than hydrauwlic,
paddle gean on the bottom gates and a gine §Light of
steps. 1L 48 not clear why this Lock has mitred bottom
gates while the othen seven have singles. The BCN
changed back to mitred gates in 1843, a couple of
yeans agten the Branch opened, and Lt 48 possible that
this Lock was nebwllt at a Laten date. The remains og
Ladderns can sLLULL be seen on some of the older botiom
gates. These were provided instead of steps at the
tail of each Lock. Provisions can be obfained at the
shops to the Legt of Top Lock Bridge.

The Boatman's Rest just beyond the bridge was one
of three mission hatls on the BCN operated by the
Inconporated Seamen and Boatmen's Friend Society. The
othen two halls, both now demolished, were nearn Gas
Street Basin in Biumingham and at Hednesgond on the
Cannock Extension. The aim of the Society was o care
gon the spinitual and physical welgare of the boatmen,
Services were held in the missions and at popular
mooring points, clubroom facilities (but no aleohot)
provided, and Letters wiitten gon the boatmen free of
charge. Boat children were given as much education as
possible, although theirn attendance was inevitably
sporadic. The missions would even provide overnight
sheltern gon a boatman working a Long Duip on a "day"
boat without a propen cabin. The boat horses were noit
gongotien and siables wene erected at the Boatman's Rest
and at Rushatll, Great Bridge, Ryderns Green and Hednesford;
all places whene honses and mules might have fo stand
walting thein tuwn gon Locks orn while the boat was
Loaded, There wenre also mission hatls at Wolverhampton

wsl1
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Top Lock and Tipton (see MLI0) which were <independent
o4 the Society, although they operated in much the
same way. |

A few yands beyond the mission the canal foins the |
Walsall (Birchills) Branch of the Wyrkey and Essinglon. ‘
When Walsall Locks were constructed the end of this \
branch was Legt as a shont axm, This Later became the
base gon E.Thomas (Walsall) Lid., a canal cawviier who
had several hundred "day" boats moving shont haul trafgic
(mos£ly coal) on the BCN and nedighbowiing canals. As
commerciLal thaggic declined Ln 't?l?. 1950's and '60'5
"Exnie" Thomas was one of the few cavierns to successfully
adapt Lo Zhe changing patiern og use of the wateways. 1
He founded Gailey Canal Cruisers on the Stagfgs and Worcs
Canal and then moved Lo Hatherton Junction, where he
spent his remaining yearns until his death Ln 1973
developing Cal§ Heath Marina and the hire gleet business
that is stiL based there today,

Walsall's wornst industrial acedident occwwred at the
nearby Walsall Iron Company wonrks, On the 15th Octoben,
1875 an overgilled gurnace buwst as Lt was being ZLapped
and 17 men (7 some accounts siate 15 on 12) were showered
with molten metal, Thiee were Ln such agony that they
Jumped sthaight into the canal. Eventually iwo men
recoverned, Larngely due Lo the nunsing sRiLES of Sister
Dora, Walsall's most gamous inhabitant. Sisten Donra
(Porothy Pattison) came grnom Yorkshine in 1865 to take
change of Walsall's ginst hospital and stayed until her
death in 1878, Her nunsing techniques were such that the
death nate from serious accidents, mainly industrial
infuries, was Less than the average gor the most
progressive London teaching hospitals, She was the
civilian equivalent of Flonence Nightingale and was
negarnded with neverence by the townspeople.

Agter passing the closed Birchills power station and
crnossing the massive blue brick aqueduct over the hailway
the canal neaches BirchillLs Junetion. Turn Legi fon
WoLverhampton on night gon the Anglesey and Daw End
Branches.

wB2



’BIRMINGHAM CANAL NAVIGATIONS,

5963 TRAIN —E;FF_HCKET
LITTLEWORTH RAILWAY.

'RAIN No. .. _ (ur.)

L0 GUARD AND JENGINEMAN.

You are nuthorisod tg proceed from

:Wilnblebury' Junction to Cooper's Lodge Junction,

‘and. the Train Staff will follow.
TI‘"N" f— N ) ) ,\i!umhu'r

D n’f* 188 .
5 [ovEi.

This Tioket is" to be given up by the Fingineman
immediately on arrlyal at the Station to whiol he is
authorised to plooeod to tho Chief OMlcer on duty tlmre,
who will bo hold reuponslblo for this and all such Tickots
being .at onoo oancellod nnd forwarded to the Offlcer
appointed to rooolvo thom, #o asg' to provent tho possibility
of thoir being used n sccond time.
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THE WYRLEY AND ESSINGTON CANAL

(<ncluding the Cannock Extension, the
Daw End Branch, and the Anglesey Branch)

To join the Wyrley and Essington, turn off the
Main Line at Honseley Fields Junction, gollouding the
s4gnpost 1o Walsall and Cannock. This indication 4is
somewhat misleading, as the Latier fown has been
severnal miles from a navigable canal since most of
the Cannock Extension was abandoned in 1963. Fwithermone
the W & E neally is part of the BCN, and has been since
amalgamation 4in 1840, although one arm of the s4ignpost
goumly states otherwdise.

Fiouwt impressions are not favowrable, Agten
passing undern two solid but uninspiring bridges, the
view &4 of dereliction and waste ground on the night,
and of an expanse of blue cormwgated inon (Buitish
Steel) on the Legit. However, appearances are decepiive,
;Zd this <5 one of the most interesting stretches of

e W & E,

The stop-Lock, now without gates, incornporates an
overglow weirn; an indication that the water Level 4in
the W & E was once higher than in the Wolverhampton
Level of the Biwmingham Canals, and that any surplus
gLowed into the Latten. This was designed to safeguard
the watern supply og the Biumingham system when the
funetion was opened in 1794, The Act for the construction
of the new canal included clauses to this effect,
insented at the insistence of the Biumingham company,
not surprhisingly Ln view of thein constant problems with
waten shontages.

Eanly maps show a toll-howse on the Legt of the
navows but no trace of this nemains, and the fwo-
stoneyed building on the night, almost hidden behind
Lumbledown shacks, was used for many yearns. The aum on
this side of the canal Leads to the LMS Boat Vock (also
known as Commercdal Wharg) which has recently been

nestoned by the West Mideands County Council.
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Ungornitunately the Boat Dock {Llusinates the
diggiculty of achieving nestornation without Losing
much of the character and interest of the orniginal.
The cobbled yarnd has become tawmac, the cofour wash
and nustic fence are Lnconghuous, and the massive oak
beams along the gloor of the Dock have disappeared.
Six of these beams were arranged An pairs running down
to the waten, and formed slipways up which the boats
were dragged by hand windlasses, This Dock was unusual
in that "pulling out" was done Lengthwise nathen than
sideways, as was the usual practice.

Many of the orniginal builfdings have been demolished.,

The boilerhouse and plank-bending shed went some years
ago; Zhe bLacksamith's gonge, gatehouse and one of the
two pitened rnoogs of the Vock, with an attractive
nailway-style canopy over the aum, disappeared durning
nestonation., Howevern the nemaining roof is sELEL
suppornted by elegant casi-inon columns, and the stable
block has found new use as Lndustrnial premises. Another
Loss 44 the oniginal Zoolks, including boat jacks,
bostocks and windlasses, which were sELLL in use here
only give yearns ago. Some of these are probably
necoverable, although Lt is perhaps unlikely that they
will evern neturn Lo this site.

Boat Jack - Honseley Fields Dock WET
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The basin on the Legt opposite the Boat Dock 44
a Mideand Railway interchange basin., The Midland was
the Last of the three rallways to heach Wolverhampton,
aviving in 1872, and this canal depoil was built about
1880, Until twelve on thinteen yeans ago the basin
had a 42 §oot span Limber noof supported on a 300 foot
Long brick wall on one side, and on eleven cast {ron
columns in the middle of the canal on the othern. 1t
was stueturally sound and demolition appeared fo
serve no usequl puwrpose. Proposals for use as moorings
have necently been put fowarnd and, 4f approved, should
enswie the future of the basdin.

The canal now passes through a mixed indusirnial/
nesdidential area and onto a Low embankment agier Peans
Road Bridge. 1§ wusing the access into the ear park at
the nean of the Bulls Head beware of nubble in the
canal. Wednesgield Heath, opened 4in 1837, was the
oniginal Wolverhampton station, but it was scon
superseded by Wolverhampton High Level, and closed in
1873, 1t was ginally demolished in the Late 19605. In
1923 one of the st twlleybus services 4in Britain
began operating along the Wolverhampiton Road o
Wednes §ield.

At Wednesgield Junction there are neasonable
moorings under the cast-inon hoving bridge; the towpath
43 used by vehicles §rnom the Lock house (BCN No.245)
and should not be obstructed. The gorces of Edward,
son of ALfred the Great, defeated the Danes in a batile
in this arnea (exact site unknown), at the time of the
neconquest of the Danelaw by the English.

The Bentley Canal was closed 4in 1961, excepi fon
the §Light of s4ix Locks at this end. The one nedeeming
geaturne of this closure was that Lt helped Lo convince
Local authonities that elimination of a canal neally
was more thoubfesome and expensive than restoration.
The nemaining s4ix Locks are noit navigable as the paddle
gear has been removed and the canal blocked
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by a substantial fence at Well Lane Bridge below Lock
4, This section was only relained for water supply
pwrposes (there were fowr abstraction points in Lthis
Length) and use of the Locks has been strongly
discouraged since the eanly 19705,

An intenesting feature was the coal unloader to
be gound between Locks 5 and 6, Coal %o fuel a gas
producer was shovelled grom a boat inte a tunnel under
the towpath, a womnm conveyor was funed and cawied
the coal through the tunnel, where it gell into a
continuous Line of buckets and was Ligled up into the
plant. Unfortunately this was nemoved and the towpath
Levelled some yeans ago. The Midland Walsall Line,
now greight only, has been Lifted beyond the works at
the bottom of the glight.

The foundations of the octagonal tofl-office are
clearly visible by Wednesgield Stop. The Ladies and
gents toilets, now derelict, were presunably erected
gor the benefit of those engaged in the canal traffic,
as 4Lt 48 unlikely there was much demand §rom the
genenal public fon facilities here, Rookery Bridge
has a sharnp bend on eithern sdide with poorn visibility.

Wednes field has been built on an outcrop of
dolerite, a brown on green Ligneous rock, which is
ogten verny close to the surnface, and 48 exposed in

WE3




A permiey

Locksh4) '\komﬂ
Locks (i)
wu; g “;’
LA i )
fcoad) 22 -
) o 1di
rc ROOKERY STREET Ay |
L
OOKERY BRITGE
— WULENKALL
Ps L8
Buyiy
s N x
WEDNESFHELD
ALt
SERVICES " _
t I %
I
';." Sule, —>
SHops : GRAISELEY LANE T.L 100"
2 THE Boar' 5T CHuAeN BRIDGE
L8 T P
5 e
£
Rt S ol
— CCI0 (BARw Brce-FB)
(I
D
ARTRY
“— ofc
AWILLENNALL WEACYELLE LANE P“"OL, nh"‘
551 FES
515 0] =
sa¢
A
L3
@
ﬁ SHols
v
-
1 \x' r“
=3 -J 4 B

Blowwic Hé— ALty

WARDS BRIDGE
‘754 AMOS LANE BALTL ’f’l{

% Albo—»
%
1\,‘

SHoPS

Aty <

[

l
WE 4

F.8,
I = 515
51¢

- MOAT MOuSE
A BRIDGE



sevenal places where the canal has been cut throut it.
Quarnying fon this stone was widespread, parnticularly
on the south side of the village, but there were no

productive coal measures and mining proved unprofitable.,

The indusitnial nevolution had Little direct effect on
the village, beyond the development of small workshops
engaged in metalwornking. The most important of these
cottage Andustries was Lock and key manufacture,
though on a smallen scale than in neighbouring
Willenhall, and trapmaking, which was almost a

Wednes §ield monopoly. The Ttrhaps nanged from those

gon nats up to Lion and man trhaps (wsually without
teeth 4in the jaws).

Even now there 4s s4LL something of a village
atmosphere in the Church Street area, perhaps enhanced
gz the way that Wednesfield tends to turn {ts back on

e canakl, 40 that access to High Stneet shops 48 not
encounaged, Eithern §ollow the path jusit before the
§inst house after Rookery Bridge or use the opening
into the carn park at the nearn of buildings in Church
Strneet, The Latten s more convenient for the main
shopping centre but depends on the fence remaining
down. Between Pinfold Bridge and Wards Bridge there
48 a pleasant mooning overlooking the school playing
gields. Although the cowwse off the Roman Road grom
Edgbaston to Stretton on Watling Street is not known
with centainty, there 45 some evidence that {t crossed
the £ine of the canal just agter Pingold Bridge, and
lcandpwmud with L& on the Legt as farn as Moat House
Bridge.

Much of the next few miles is nesidential in
characten but with gardens tunning down to the canal,
many thees, and several open areas, it 44 noi un-
attrnactive, Devil's ELbow Bridge 48 next fo a
particularly tight bend, and no doubi {{s name
neglects the difficulties encountered by boatmen when
negotiating these obstacles with Leaded boats. 1t is
now one of the most grotesque s4ights on the BCN as
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eveny 4inch has been covered with white cement
nendering. Possibly this {5 all that <4 holding
the bridge togethen!

Evidence of fonmer mining activity begins 2o
appear agten 0Linthus Bridge, and continues §or the
next two on three miles, with the nemains of a number
of colliery basins visible, particularly on the Lefit
o4 the canal. Holly Bank Basin (Shent Heath Branch)
was The Langest of these, initially serving the mines
at New Tnvention, and Later Holly Bank Collieny.

This basin has necently been dredged and Landscaped,
and 45 a convenient moorning for "The Swan".

Pool Hayes Bridge, and the overflow weirn a §ew
hundred yarnds before, are attractive red brick
stweturnes, The bridge now serves no purpose, and
the thack crossing L& s bLocked on both sides of
the canal, but Lt may well date from the time when
the canal was consinucted.

There 445 no access to the shops at Lane Head
Bridge; 4t 44 best to moonr begore the bridge and walk
acnoss the ghass to Greadien Street. These are the
Last shops within easy nreach of the canal for five
miles on s0. Both "The United Kingdom" and "The
Bruidge" make commendable effornts to attract custom
by providing steps and a gate to theirn nespective car
parks, but moorning by either 48 difficult owing Lo
obstructions in the canal.

The housing estates are now Legt behind and the
canal winds through an area where the scans of mining
have been concealed by natwre, as 4in Rough Wood, or
neclaimed by man, as with the clay pits on the night.
This open space 4is very popwlar with Local nesidents,
and the canal banks can be crowded with walkers,
piende parnties and sightseerns. There 44 a nature
il through Rough Wood (stop 3 on the thail s at
Bentley Wharnf Bridge) and a §ree booklet descnribing
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this s nonmally available ghom Walsall Librany,
Unfortunately it 48 at present out of pruint and
stocks are exhausted, but hopefully a new edition
will soon be available.

Even without the guide-book there is much of
internest 1o be seen in the area. The northern hatf
5 covered with mixed deciduous woodland whilst to
the south, bondening the canak, 44 heath or hough
grassland with dense hawthorn scrub. There has
probably been Little on no mining since the 1926
General Sinike but the surface workings and shallow
shagts can stLL be found - one of the shafts is
close Lo the Legt bank of the canal about 150 yards
agtern the demofished bridge. Many of the pools are
the nesult of subsidence and §Looding of old workings,
and the mounds scattered between them are pit banks
and spoil heaps, some burnt to ned shale by spontaneous
combustion of the waste coal in them, The cowse of
the tramway running to shagt 12 45 marked by a rail
embedded in a path about 100 yards grom the canal,

To zthe east of Bentley Wharg Bridge the Mé
disnupts the semi-uval tranquility and the noise and
fumes nemain as an accompaniment almost as far as
Sneyd Junction, As some compensaiion there are views
acnoss the valley of the Sneyd Brook to Bloxwich and,
on the night, to Walsall and Barwn Beacon (744 geef).
The most prominent Landmark, and one which will be
seen nepeatedly over the next ten miles or more, 4s
Walsall (Binchills) Power Station.

At Sneyd Junction the main Line of the canal
beans sharp night undern the bridge; straight ahead
45 the Wynley Branch, now only navigable as gar as
the derelict bottom Lock of the Sneyd (Light. This
branch was an integral part of the W & E as orniginally
planned and Lt was built concwuiently with the
Wolverhampton - Birchills section. 1t Led to the
Essington Locks Line and both these canals served
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the mines of Henwry Vernon, a Leading shareholder and
chainman of the Company in 1796, who had agreed %o
supply a regulan traggic on the new canal by using
At to transpont his coal. Unfortunately the nelation-
ship soon turned sourn as problems arose with the
Essinglon Line, which Left the Wnyley Branch three
gurlongs above Sneyd Top Lock and was opened fwo on
three yearns Laten. One indication of the strained
nelationship was that in 1799 Vernon deliberately
breached the canal Zo necover a sunken boat and
Lowerned a 14 mile pound 7 inches - an unusual and
probably unique action by an ex-chainman of a canal
company! This dispute numbled on {nconclusively for
15 yearns on more and at one stage Telford was asked
1o nepont on the state of the canal.

The Essingion Branch was very much a whife
elephant. The shont summit pound, at about 533 feet,
was the highest Level neached by any constifuent
company of the BCN, but the Locks were extnemely
difficult to use as the watern supply was gfrom a small
sineam, supplemented by pumping. Perhaps noi
sunprisingly, the branch was abandoned sometfime Lin
the Lasit centuny.

The Wyrley Bank Branch nan northwanrds from near
the end of the Wyrley Branch, and was improved and
extended 4n 1857 2o give a total fLength §rom Sneyd
Junction to the teminus of 33 miles. Boith branches
wene closed in 1954, an unfortunate Loss as they ran
through pleasant countryside and there were several
features og Anterest. These Lincluded the Awo nemaining
BCN wooden Ligt-bridges, similar to those on the
Leangollen Canal, and Sneyd Reservoirn, which s48L
contains some water, although silted and overgrown
and no Longen used. The BCN Head 0ffice was moved Lo
Sneyd House (BCN No.199) in 1939 and nemained there
until nationalisation in 1948, The House and
owtbuildings, on the Left of the canal above the
neservoirn, werne demolished 4n 1972,
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Continuing Lowarnds Binchills there L5 a
puzzling step in the Ltowpath opposite Sneyd
Maintenance Yand - possibly a "honse step” on which
an animal which had gallen in the water could place
Aty gornegeet and be hawled back onto dny Land, The
overnglow weir begore Sineyd Stop s unuwsual in that
a plank bridge carnies the towpath over Lt. The
nemainden of this Length 4is a rather uninteresiing
mixturne of Lndustrny and housing, with very Little in
the way of facilities. The two Hatherton blasi
gurnaces and the old blowing -engine house were
demolished 4in 1982, The second side bridge hexre,
although the better preserved of the two, with wooden
capping Lo protect the brickwonk grom tow-Line wear,
has a dangerous hole in- the towpath crossing Lft.

Twin night at Birehills Junetion fon Walsall
Locks and the Walsall Canal. The §inst half mile on
50 04 the Walsall Branch, as gar as Birnchills Whanrg,
i stnietly part of the W & E., as it was the orniginal
Line, but even before it was open the Company had been
empowenred to extend the canal grom Binchifls Junction
to Huddlesfond via Catshill. The branch was Little
wsed after the BCN's Walsall Canal reached the town
grom the opposite dineetion Ln 1799, and it apparantly
nemained 50 until the two canals were Linked in 1841
by the construction of Walsall Locks,

Beyond Green Lane Bridge the site of Birchills
Hall Tnon Works (galvanized and corrugated sheets,
fnying pans and boat plates) 48 now occupied by zthe
wonks of TI Stainless Tubes, agter which the canal
again passes into a mainly resdidential area. The
boatyard of Peter Keay and Son has necently been Zaken
over by Keelkast Narrowboats and moved to Minerva Wharg
at Honseley Fields, thus ending overn ity yearns of
wooden boat building at Pratt's Bridge Dock.

The LMS Walsall to Cannock €ine 44 freight only,
although there 45 a stnong Local campaign o reopen
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Lt fon passengern trhaggic, The canal crosses the
nailway cutting {n an impressive blue brick aqueduct,
with a plen between the thacks supporting a central
segmented inon irough, and on each side of this a
cast anch, LLoyds, Fosten and Co., whose inscription
45 on the arch, Later became part of the rival Patent
Shagt Company. When the nailway was constructed the
opportunidy was taken Lo cut off a bend in the canal,
while at the same time avoiding a Lengthy stoppage.
This was done by digging a new Line Lncfuding the
aqueduct Linside the bend before cutting thhough the
ofd Line, which then became two basins., The second

of these 48 full of derelict narrowboats. Such
"graveyarnds" wene a common sight on the BCN in the
19505 and '608 as cargoes wene Lost fo noad transport
and morne on Less worthless nedundant boats were burnt,
broken up on simply abandoned. Many have since been
salvaged by enthusiasts gon conversion to pleasure
wse, othens have disintegrated where they Lay, and
nelatively gew now remain. A Large propontion of the
boats on the W & E were built oversize fon use on

the Lock-gree Wolvernampion Level, which was over 40
miles 4n Length., They were known as wharg on 'ampton
boats, measuned c 86' x 7'9", and caried up to 50
tons of coal grom the Cannock Chase pits fo factory
and powern station wharves in Wolverhampton, Bilston
and Tipton. There are neponts, possibly apocryphal,
o4 amateur salvage teams naising a sunken boat and
then §inding that they were unable to pass through
the ginst Lock they encountered.

Just agter Coal Pool Bridge the Towpatch 44
almost blocked by posis and nails and there is
anothern step similan to the one at Sneyd. Here and
at Hildicks Bridge the canal 45 only a mile as the
crow fLies grom Winterley on the Vaw End Branch; by
watern Lt 45 ten times the distance. 1t 44 perhaps
inadvisable Lo Leave a boat unattended in this area;
in 1982 a noad-nollen parked overnight in the hospital
ghounds ended up on its side, with engine running, 4in
the cut,
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Pelsall was a mining village in the Last century
and Pelsall Hall Colliery was the scene 04 a major
disastern on 14 November 1872, when waten broke into
old wonkings and the pit was glooded, Although 6}
million gallons of water were pwaped out in an attempi
Lo nescue any swwivons, twenty-iwo men and boys died.

In common with other 13th century canals the
W, & E. avodided major eanthwonks by gollowing the
contourn Line and this 44 very obvious as 4t winds
Zhrhough the village of Little Bloxwich and enterns open
countrhyside. The bends here indicate why the canal is
popularly referred to as the "Curly Wyrley) although
this sounds mone Like a fashionable hairdresser than
an ofd boatman's phrase. Another nickname was the
"ganseys (on ganzees)', indicating that some sinetches
(eg. the embankment by Lord Hay's Branch Canal) wene
50 exposed and bleak that Guernsey sweaterns were ogten
worn, This Lerm was apparently also used for Rushall
Locks and Walsall.

The next few miles of the W, & E. are more
intenesting botanically than most of the popular
cruising wateways as the number of boats disturnbing
this nuwal section of the BCN s nelatively small,
and species such as white water Lily, water violet,
gLowering rush and the trwe bulrush can be found Ln
orn nean the canak. Fishley Bridge No.l on Lond Hay's
canal (1% miles, abandoned 1954) has no towpath and
the towing-Line would have had o be detached befone
a honse~drawn boat could pass through it. This perhaps
indicates that the bulk of the trafgic was Lo Fishley
Collieny basin just past the bridge. On the Legt just
agtern the branch the canal overlooks a gield where
honses can sometimes be seen trhaining with sulhies
gon harness hacing (thotting).

Pelsall Works Bridge 48 one of the mosit internesting

strwetunes on the BCN, 1t 4is the earliest dated
Honseley Company bridge and possibly one of the §inst
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ever produced by them, Surprnisingly £t appearns o
have been completely ignored by indusirnial
anchaeologists and Yocal histornians. Although very
difgerent in style and design grom the Laten
Hornseley bridges the magnificent arch of cast-iron
plates has the same characterisiic elegance.,

Wood Common was the site of Pelsall Tronwonrks,
and Looking across the common now Lt 4is difgicult to
Amagine that a hundred yearns ago there werne 2 blast
furnaces, 40 puddfing furnaces, 7 mills and gforges,
a gas producing plant, Limekilns and Locomotive sheds
between Pelsall Wonks Bridge and Pelsall Junction,
Beer fon the {nonwonrkens was carnied Ln buckets
attached to a yoke grom the Free Thade Inn, and a
"Tommy Shop", now converted to a dwelling-house and
necently modernised, was next Lo the bridge. This
was part of an Lnlquitous system whereby wonkerns
neceived parnt of their wages as tokens, which could
only be exchanged for goods at the company shop.
Thus the owners progited not only grom theirn main
business but also grom theirn employees' purchases
o good and othern necessities. The company went
bankrupt in the necession of the 18905, their
colliernies were sold to the Watlsall Wood Collierny
Company, and ALgred Hickman of Bilston Steelworks
bought the salvage nights.

The Cannock Extension Canal joins the main €ine
on the Legt at Pelsall Junction. Constructed between
1858 and 1863 this canal extended 53 miles to
Hednes fond Basins in the heant of the Cannock Chase
coalfield, and connected with the Hatherton Branch
of the Staffordshirne and Worcestershire Canal via
Churchbridge Locks. 1t was the Last branch of the
BCN to be built and is very much a railway age canal,
nunning straight across County and with massive blue
brick bridges. This can be clearly seen from the
Jjunction, with a continuous series of bridge arches
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The Cannock Extension Canal

Aften passing Pelsall Sitop, with L8 interesting
collection of canalside buildings, this canal runs
through atthactive countryside Lo a ghoup of boaityards,
including M.E.Braine and Canal Thanspont Services, at
Nonton Canes Docks. Moorning 46 possible almost anywhere,
although nean the kennels {& can be very noisy L4 the
dogs are disturbed. The best site 44 probably the ofd
collieny basins aften Wyrley Common Bridge. Winding £s
possible hene orn at the entrance fo Canal Thansporit
Senvices dock, where waten, guel and ELsan disposal
pacilities are available,

Churchbridge Locks, which connected the Cannock
Extension with the Staggs. and Wores. Canal, were
demolished in 1955 by opencast mining, and the Cannock
Extension Ltself was closed north of Watling Stneet in
1963 because of subsidence. This was s0 bad that gon
several years a team of bricklayens was continuously
engaged <in Laying Auccessive cowrses of bricks te build
up the banks. Aerial photoghaphs taken just agten
closurne show the canal at Norton completely gilled with
abandoned boats (70 on s0 4in Less than } mile). A sad
commentary on the nun down of the BCN and the value of
boats without cargoes! The closed section was
chanacterised by some spectacularn embankments with
panoramic views and monumental brick overglow weilrs.

At the end of the branch was Littleworth Thanway, opened
at about the same time as the canal and the only railway
owned by the BCN. 1t connected with the complex netwonk
04 Lines serving the Cannock Chase coalfield and brought
50 much trafgie to Hednesfond Basins that Lamp standarnds
were erected s0 that Loading of coal cowld continue T4
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appearning to merge into one anothen. Only just over
a mile of the canal nemains navigable but there are
several excellent places gorn a quiet overnight moornding.

Furnthen along the Ww. & E., ‘under Yonks Foundry
Bruidge, 45 an ancient British Thansport Commission
notice. Tnis s nemarkably well preserved considesring
that £t must be more than 20 yearns ofd (the BTC was
abolished at the end og 1962). Both Gilpin's Axnm and
the Slougn Anm were shornt private branches o
collienies; the entrnance to the Lattern 4is blocked but
otherwdise Lt 48 in neasonable condition as gar as the
Lock chamber,

Coopers Bridge was built at about the turn of the
centurny to neplace a swing bridge, which no doubit
ofdten caused delay. 1L caies the inseription of
J.Gettings & Co., and appears to be the only example
04 thein work on the BCN, The protective nollers on
the towpath side of the bridge hole have disappeared
but thein supponts and the guards at the base to
prevent snagging of the towing-Line can sLULL be seen.

Aften passing wo nailway interchange basing on
the Left the canal swings round the oulskints of
Brownhlls, Access to the High Street shops 4is best
obtained by mooning by the gootbridge and walking
down Pien Street on Silver Sineet. At Catshill
Junetion turn night for the Daw End Branch, Leading
to the Rushall and Tame Valley Canals, on continue
along the main Line towards Anglesey Basin and
Chasewater.
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Anchon Bridge caies the old Chesten Road oven
the canal; in the 18th century trhavellerns on this
stneteh of noad were grequently inconvendienced by
the highwayman Tom King.

Since Leaving Wolverhampton the W & E has been
cnossing the South Staggondshine Coalgield from west
to east, and has been on nocks of the Upper and Middle
Coal Measwres (predominately the Lattern). Nean the
entrance to the Sandhills Aum, which has now disappeared
undern ganmband, the canal passes into an area of Bunten
sandstone and pebble beds. This ned sandstone is very
obvious Ain the cutting at 0gley Junction, where the
Anglesey Branch comes Ln on the Legt. T 48 noi
unusual to see kinggishers along this Length; a
stniking contrast with othern, more indusinial, parts
0§ the BCN.

The main £ine now ends a few yards beyond the
Junetion, just under the attractive Hornseley turnover
bridge. From 1797 until 1954 0gley Locks Led down
thhough Lichfield to Muddlesfond Junction jusit over
7 miles away on the Coventry Canal. 04 all the closwres
that the BCN has suffered this was undoubtedly the mosit
ungortunate, as Lt severed a very useful Link with the
Trent and Mewsey and adjoining canals. Unlike the
Cannock Extension, which had <mmense problems with
subsidence, there appears to have been no particular
neason forn abandonment, other than the cost of
maintaining the canal and &5 30 Lochs in reasonable
onden,

In 1877 the Bishop of Lichgield, whose diocese
included much of the nonthern section of the BCN, had
a boat built with a cabin gitted out forn neligious
sernvices and appointed a chaplain, the Lichfield
Diocesan Barge Missionarny, Lo ministen to the
spiritual needs of the canal population.
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The Anglesey Branch

The Anglesey Branch was orniginally a feeder grom
Chasewatern (Cannock Chase) nreservoir. This was made
navigable 4in 1850 when the Marquis of Anglesey starnted
to develop coal mines in the area, Most of the branch
{5 on the Buntern Sandsione and the ingluence of the
underlying rock on the vegetation 4s verny noirceable.
Charnacteristic heathland plants such as bell-heathen
and &ing fLounish on the well-drained acid s04ids,
particulartly around the ofd pits dug gor moulding sand.

The nameplates on Anglesey and Freeth bridges anre
o4 an unusual design with scalloped ends. Freeth Bridge
48 one of two with similarn names on the W £ E, and there
48 a thind on the Tame Valley Canal (q.v.:TV4).
Beware of boulders in the canal on the towpath side
when Leaving Bwutwood Road Bridge, and do not place
too much neliance on the notice regarding moorning a
Little gurnthern along, as there are one or two shallow
areas (e.g. by the overflow weir on the Legt).

Coal was Loaded at Anglesey Basin until 1967 and
the nustling skeletons on the bank are the chutes where
Lt was thansgered grom Lonny to beat, The brick
pillans arne the supports of earliern chutes which
extended across the canal s0 that boats could be Loaded
as they moved underneath. These nelics, and the coal
dust 2480 Liberally scatterned along the towpath, are
all that nemain as mementos of the Last regulan coal
tapgic on the BCN,

The Basin now 45 Ldeal for overnight mooring, with
ample noom gor dozens of boats and something of internest
nearby gorn almost anyone. The swurounding area A4
Ampontant (ghade A) for nature conservation, with some
attractive plant communities and several uncommon specdes
0f binds. The valve house on the dam gives some Ldea
04 what a BCN octagonal foll-ofgice must have Looked
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Like beforne they were all demolished, and the
cragtsmanship shown Ln the brickwork of the sluices

at the end of the overglow channel s worth examination.
There s waten ski-ing, power-boating and sailing on
Chasewater, thotting at the Raceway, and an amusement
park where a nailway preservation socletly has a
collection of exhibits (including a BCN boundary posit)
and a Length of nestored itrack, with thains runnding on
Sundays and Bank Holidays.

In 1799 Chasewater was Zhe scene of what must have
been a spectacularn disastern when the dam gave way,
apparantely just aften Lt had been built (on even as
the neservoin was §€Ling). Water swept down to the night
o4 the present day canal, crossed Watling Street, joined
the Black Brook nean Shenstone and §inatlly powred Lnto
the River Tame nean Tamwonrth. Luckily the flood passed
through a sparsely populated area and there seems fo
have been Little damage: some sheep and cattle were
drowned, a new bridge nearn Shensitone was demolished,
and meadows wenre Legt 12 inches deep <in gravel. The dam
was rebuilt gaced with stone and has since served L4
pwipose well; s0 well that the W & E regularly sold
sunplus water to companies such as the Biumingham and
Liverpool Junetion (Later part of the Shropshire Undion)
and the Dudley.
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The Daw End Branch

The Daw (pronounced Doe) End Branch was completed
in Late 1802 on 1803, some five years after the main
Ling of the W & E; Lack of §4inance seems Lo have been
the princdpal neason for the delay. This was yel
anothern problem fon William Pitt, the engineer of the
W & E, in addition to his difficulities with the
Essington Branch and the collapse of the dam at
Chasewater., Pitt s something of an enigma: Little
seems Lo be known about him and he does not appear o
have built any other canals.

The Branch served the Limestone workings at Daw
End and Hay Head, and was orniginally known as the
Hay Head Branch. The 1954 Act of Parliament which
closed several sections of the W & E included the
Daw End, but fontunately no action was taken and the
Branch swwived.

11 48 difgicult to believe that this was originally
a contour canal; in several places mining and Aubsidence
have Left the waterway high above the swvrounding
countryside, Blackcock Bridge shows exactly what has
occwwned and 48 a gine example of how an L{nanimate
obfect can tell a fascinating stony. The Lwon rubbing
stnakes on the towpath sdide appear to be gan shorter
than wsual, and only reach halfway up the brick pien
0f the bridge. Furthewmone the Lower ends run into the
towpath and have been abraded by towing-Lines at ground
Level. Such wean 44 Ampossible unless one asswnes that
the nomvonk was oniginally gixed nonmally and the
Land then subsided. To maintain the Level of the canal
the -banks and towpath have been built up, burying the
Lowern half of the strakes. This would have considerably
neduced the headrnoom and the traditional Zype of canal
bridge would have had to be completely rebuilt. However
Blackcock Bridge 48 an example of design, used by the
BCN grom ¢ 1840 in areas Liable to subsidence, which
mininised the amount of rebuilding necessarny. These
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bridges have inon gindens supponted by brick piens,
and the deck of the bridge can easily be Lifted (the
Ligting nings can be seen at each end of the wooden
beams between the deck and the piens). New courses

04 bricks could then be Zaid fo build up the piens fo
thein ondginal height and the deck neplaced. 1+ only
nemained to repain the roadway and the problem was
solved, at Least forn the time being. The tremendous
gradient of the approach roads Lo the bridge indicates
the magnitude of the effects of subsidence, and how
often the process described-above may have been repeated.

Hollandens Bridge a Little fuwither along 4is also
of interest, with what appear to be adjustable tie-rods
undenneath. Thein funetion may have been to prevent the
bruidge spreading Laterally. There 48 a sharp bend
Aimmediately aften Latham's Bruidge, and deep clay pits
on both sides of the canal. Erosion of the banks here
could cause a spectacular breach, and where the canal
widens attempis are being made to prevent fuwithen
damage §rom the wash of passing boats by planting reeds
in the shallows. At Nonthywood Bridge and Barngield
Bridge stop gates were installed as a safeguard. They
were arranged 40 that they swung in opposite directions
and in the event of a breach occwwning the sudden
movement of watern wowld automatically close the gates
and seal off the canal (there are similarn sagety gates
at each end of the aqueduct cavrying the Tame Valley
canal achoss the M5 motorway). The bautlhs of timber by
the bridge hole at Northywood are the remains of the
wooden gramewonrk suppornting the gate: a photograph in
Dudley Librany (rneproduced as LLLusination 47 Lin
"Buitain's Lost wateways: Volwne 1: Inland Navigations"
by M.E.Ware) clearly shows the original structure. The
canal has only necently been nreopened agtern a Lengthy
stoppage here to Linvestigate a suspected Leak and
undertake nemedial action.

Since Catshill Junction the Daw End Branch has been
on hocks of the Upper Coal Measures. These rocks, the
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Etuwda Marnks, consist mainly of purple and red clays
and £t 44 theAe that have been excavated to provide

naw material fon brick-making. The famous Staffordshire
blue bricks are produced by §iring the clay at 1200°C
orn more, with the final stage of firning taking place

in a neducding atmosphere. These clays have a high content
0§ <rhon oxide and when the {wn 48 neduced £t combines
with silica to fonm a fused sfag-Like silicate, which
§48Ls the pones of the brick and makes Lt impervious.
The bricks are thus weather-proof and virtually
indestrwuetible (they can withstand presswies of 483 tons
Lo the square foot) and many millions were used,
particularntly by canal and railway engineers 4in ﬂte Last
centuny, Fining the clay at a Lowern temperature and
without neduction nesults in a ned brick which 44
cheapen, as Less fuel is consumed, but not as strong
and duwrable. One of the clay pits 45 now used for the
disposal of noxious indusirnial wastes.

The ned mants worked nonth of Walsall Wood were
degicient in Lwn and would not yield blue bricks,
AL Walsall Wood collieny gorn example the clay gave only
pale yellowish-red bricks and agricultural drainpipes.
The various collienies along this stretch of canal
sunk shagts through the Etrwuia Mards to reach the
productive Middle Coal Measunes below.

Aften Aldrnidge Wharg Bridge the area afgected by
subsidence <4 Left behind, the embankments disappear,
and the wateway 5 at Last recognisable as a contour
canal, In the Late 19605 there was an unsuccess jul
attempit to develop a trafgic in o4k, using specially
adapted narrowboats, grom ELLesmere Pont to the
industrial estate on the night agten Hopley's Bridge.
The industny along this stretch (8 handly noticeable;
there 48 a screen of tnees and shrubs and the canal
8 quiet and secluded. This Length of towpath appears
to be one of the Least wsed on the BCN and 45 very
overghown, The canal needs dredging 4in several places
and mooning 45 sometimes difgicult (eg: by the gap 4in
the hedge Leading to the playground).
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The Branch has now entered the Limestone area it
was bult to serve, as can be seen from the white
Limestone blocks edging the canal and in the bridge
abutments. The underlying rocks ane amongst the oldest
in the negion (Laid down about 400 million years ago)
and consist of beds og Limestone and shale which crop
out over an area roughly 2 miles wide and 3 miles Long.
The strhata dip in a westerly direction and the youngest
deposits (the Wenlock Limestone) are exposed near the
canal as it cunves nound the western sdide of the area.
These outernops have been worked for hundreds of yearns,
and thene is evidence that the Romans bwwnt the sitone
to produce Lime used in the building of thein settlement
at Wall (Letocetun) on Watling Street. A magnigicient
bank of Lime kRilns just before Winterley Bridge was
bwiied unden tons of rubble and spoil Lin the Late 1970s.
The Limestone was also used as a plux Lin the smeliing
o4 4non one and as a building stone (eg: Rushall Chuwrch).
There was also a shagt sunk to obtain "Fullerns Eanth",
a Bentonitic Clay found associated with the Limesione
and used forn cleansing punrposes.

As the swrface outcrops were exhausted shafts
were Aunk and underground workings developed. The
Langest of these was Linfey Caves which started as a
sungace excavation through the Coal Measuwres over the
Limestone and was extended until there were Lmmense
caverns, complete with an underground Lake. These wete
a well-known Local attraction in the Last century and
wenre ogten Llluminated fon visiting parnties. The mines
are now all fLooded and Linaccessible: they were used
dwiing the 1939-45 war forn the storage of ammunition,
but this had to be nemoved owing to probfems with damp.
Similan caverns exist under the town of Walsall, a mile
on two to the south-west.

The Daw End railway cutting, where the canal
crnosses the Midland Walsall to Watern Onton Line, has
necently (1980) been declared a site of special
selentigic internest, as the exposuwre of Wenlock Limestone
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hene 48 considered to be the best in the country. The
nocks are extnemely nich in o0s84Ls and an interesting
featune L8 the occuwrnence of Large Lwvegular masses of
conalline Limesitone, known as "crog-balls" on "self
Lunps". Just before the aqueduct 45 an unspollt canalside
pub, "The Manor Aums", which <8 well wornth a visit.

The canal now bearns away fo the south-east through
attrhactive countryside, crossing progressively olden
deposits of Wenlock Shales until it neaches Hay Head.
There are severnal Lnviting spots gon mooring and the
oppordunity forn some pleasant walks, although the Zowpath
48 holed and uneven approaching Longwood Bridge.

The oniginal Line of the canal is on the Left at
Longwood Junction, with the §inst two hundred yands
wsed as moonings by the Boat CRub. Wonthy of noie here
are the s4x BCN boundary posts trhansplanted grom
Chasewater - but obtain permission before visiting the
moornings to view them. The nemainder of the Branch has
been abandoned and now gonms part of the Hay Head Wood
Nature Reserve. There 44 a nature thail through the
Reserve and a booklet descnibing this 44 available grom
Walsall Librany (on Walsall M.B.C. Recreation and
Amenities Department).

Te the east of the canal where the Barn Limestone
cnops out grom beneath the Wenlock Shales is another
site of special scilentific internest, Hay Head quarries.
The famous Bradley inonmaster, John Wilkinson (see WOLT-3)
was parnt owner of the quarwiies when the Branch was
construeted, and considering the advantages of canal
thanspont at that time he was probably one of {ts main
advocates., The quarnies were renowned fon the Lime
produced when the stone was buwint. An advertisement
in 1822 states that "the 0£d Biumingham Canal o.....
exclusively used Hay-Head Lime" and according Zo
White's Histony, Gazetteer and Dinectony of Stafgordshine
(1851) it was "in great demand for the building of docks,
Locks and bridges" owing Lo its "extraondinary adhesive
qualities and s sinength and durability".
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THE RUSHALL CANAL

Aften the mernger in 1840 of the W & E and the BCN
thrnee new canals were built to connect the two systems:
the Bentley Canal, Walsall Locks, and the Rushall Canal,
The Rushall difgered grom the other iwo in that it
passed through a nwal area with almosi no mining on
industny along £ts Length., At the Time of {ts consbuwetion
£t would have appeared unlikely that this new junction
canal would generate much extra thaffic fon the BCN, and
the ginal decision to go ahead may well have depended
on a Legal accident. In 1842 the BCN decided not fo
proceed with the purchase of Land fon the canal, but
they had second thoughts when they discovered that the
Act of Union with the W & E specified that the money
they had borrowed to buwild the Rushall would have fo be
netunned Lf not wsed forn that purpose. The canal
eventually opened in 1847, and although the orniginal
plans had included twin towpaths cnly one appears to
have been built. Presumably the estimate of potential
thaffic had been revised and the expense of anothenr
towpath could not be justified.

The contrast between the Daw End and the Rushall
ALRustrhates how civil engdineerding techniques had
developed in the intervemwing (i4ty yearns. At Rushall
Top Lock the change in style s very obvious; Lnstead
of gfollowing the contourn Line the canal drops down the
s4de of the valley and runs strhaight across couniny,
with cuttings and embankments where necessary. Emenging
grom the seclusion of the Daw End on a day when wind and
nain are sweeping 4n grom the south-west, Lt 45 easy to
understand why these Locks were nicknamed "the ganzees"
and Guernsey sweatens were essential,

The Rushall s deep and wide and remains rural
until agter Moat Bridge, where a "Country Walk" from
Watsall to Hay Head Wood crosses the canal. A prominent
Landmark on the Left (s Barw Beacon, one of the Links in

RUT



RU2

2

v

GREENSLAYE

§
LS

Y | 2
N o
@/ il e, | [ |1 e
’ PARK HALL RoAD
U Flveways Ty,
BRIDGE 0F

RUSHALL

LOCKS
(q: FALL 65°)

cANBERRRA ROAYD

TRUSHAL Na B

BIRMINGHAM
RofAb BRIDCE

PERRY
AR A N\
BAmiNguAm



a nationwdide chain of swnmits where signal-gines

werne Lit Lo alent the population when signigicant
events occwwied., As one beacon was visible grom another
the signal could napidly be passed across the country.
The Beacon 45 744 feet high, and can be neached by a
fwo mile walk grom Sutton Road Bridge.

The canal now enterns a resdidential area where many
of the garndens on the banks have been Laid out to
include the canal as part of thein design. The Lawns
and glowen beds nunning down o the water show what can
be done with a canal at the bottom of the ganrden,
particulantly in comparison with some parts of the BCN
where the view 48 mone ogten one of nickety fences on
heaps of nubbish. These gardens, together with the
wooded cutting between Locks 3 and 5, and the well kept
grass and gravel along the towpath between Biuminghan
Road Bridge and Bellf Bridge, make Zhis the most
attractive Length of wtban canal on the BCN.

The Rushall is on the Wenlock Shates, with
Wenlock Limestone to the nonth-west at Daw End and
the Barn Limesitone outerop running close fo the east
bank, and some of the Local stone has been wsed in the
construetion of Gillety Briidge. The very woan rubbing
stnakes hene suggest that as the Cannock Chase coalfceld
was developed there was more trhaggic on the Rushall than
the BCN had ondiginally anticipated.

One of the few remaining rollers on the BCN 4s
undern Fiveways Bridge. These noflens were often used
instead of sitnakes and theoretically should have been
more efficient (and Less damaging to ithe towing-£ines)
as the noflern would nevolve as the nope passed across
it, Unfortunately without negular eleaning and
Lubrication the bearings seized and most noflers have
become as eroded as the (ixed strakes. The towing-£ines
were s0 abrasive because of the grnit picked up by the
wet Line from the towpath, and the constant weawr on the
cotton on, more commonly on the BCN, hempen ropes meant
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that they had a very shont Life. 1t was nare gor one
to Last Longen than six weeks.

Aften Bell Bridge the canal completes (ts descent
to the 408" Watsall Level and passes through a mixture
of garunland, playing fields and housing estates, with
the noise grom the M6 becoming steadify more obtrusive.
The area between HilL Faxm Bridge and the motonway has
necently been Landscaped, with tree planting and the
constuetion of a network of foot-paths now much
fnequented by the Local joggerns. However no amount of
cosmetic Lmprovement can disguise the M6 and, once the
conthasits between the scale and atmosphere of the canal
and the motorway have been noted, therne 45 Little
pleasure to be gained from any further delay. Twin night
at Rushall Junction to neach the Walsall Canal and the
BCN Main Line on Legt forn Salgornd Junction.
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ALVECHURCH ,
BOAT CENTRE
LIMITED Qﬁ@

SCARFIELD WHARF ALVECHURCH
WORCESTERSHIRE
NR BIRMINGHAM B48 75Q

1021 445 2909

Choice of four popular one-wee

cruises from Alvechurch.

(Combinations for two or three
weeks.) o,

MAKE your DIRECT booking now!

STOURPORYT RING
Alvechurch—\Worcaster—Stourpart-on-Savern—Stourton—
Wolverhampton—Birmingham—Alvechurch.

Data: 86 miles. 116 locks. Average cruising time 48 hours.

BLACK COUNTRY RING
Alvechurch—Birmingham—Wolverhampton—Great Haywood—
Fradley—Fazeley—Salford—Birmingham—Alvechurch.

Data: 102 miles. 80 locks. Average cruising time 48 hours.

WARWICK RING
Alvechurch—Birmingham—Fezealey-—Marston Hawkesbury—
Braunston—Napton—Warwick—Kingswood—Kings Norton—
Alvechurch.

Data: 109 miles. 128 locks. Average cruising time 57 hours.

AVON RING

Alvechurch —Worcester—Tewkesbury—Stratford-on-Avon—
Lapworth—Kings Norton—Alvechurch.

Data: 108 miles. 139 locks. Average cruising time 58 hours.




BOATS

Brummagem Boats Limited + Sherborne Street Wharf
Sherborne Street + Birmingham B16 8DE -+ Tel: 021-455-6163

BIRMINGHAM MAIN BASE FOR:

Walkers
A comprehensive selection of maps, towpath and canal boocks.

Holidays

A big fleet of 2 to 8 berth top of the market steel narrow
boats for hire on a weekly basis or by the day out of season.
25 routes available.

Moorings
B.W.B. approved moorings for boats of all types 25-70 ft. Very
cornpetitive rates. City Centre convenience.

Services
Gas, diesel, pumpout, chandlery and get you home repairs.

Sales
Brokerage and new boat sales.

Repairs and Alterations
Free estimate for any type of repair or modification to canal
craft. Winterising, hull blacking, refits.

Boat Building

Over 60 boats now built for discerning inland waterways
enthusiasts.

Lectures, Exhibitions, Inland Waterways Consultancy through
The Associated Partnership of The Waterways Connection.












